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SINmagUMIwuTins 1,486,174 6,073,994 1,006,691 4,095,219
SUHRgg
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Bsmisniyls guURIANUIINIY 24 (101,885) (416,404) (59,273) (241,123)
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rmgjﬁ fimiywin) 1,174,079 889,485
ansims Soanbignnassens iefigssl log 20 27402,697 112816903 27,076,872 110,311,177
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tmﬁmﬁﬁjmﬁjwﬁmmmimmsmm g 157-01-136 G:ig15 iggan gi2001 fHwapigIENMIRNIMARYUMYGNY
Bgs 10% isiflgsivaigsy [MAREIS: ﬁﬁsmﬁiLULmﬁiﬁﬁ[,ﬁﬁﬁﬁmi’[,ﬁmiﬁiﬁﬁiaSmSiSJHI figummimsinimms
ighomidn  somipssgmwaipian wiiniing is1ﬁth nmEmeLﬁﬁB‘m"l MARENIMNITEGSE§UIMSHTM
I[N 0.65% (§120212 0.06%) FuMTUTIES

nmImang Ay (18vyY) 6.6 @
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¢. [MATIRISIHOMINS - ajg
nnvidisiinminpighaoimmuivaigifs fign:aunianginie: mstnmgingean spp apinsmemuifiy] wy
wynipginuyinmamufigusn

msij)
(AANBEIN 5) (RANBEIN 5)
mavidisiaaminnhasiimuinaigife
i mufishisis 66,665 274,460 69,156 281,742
Bis wimsnsiUminnudisgsmnisniy (1,272) (5,237) (1,424) (5,802)
65,393 269,223 67,732 275,940

vipupuisaimsisuiminnuiisgsmnisnly iGmivifisiiaming megoahimy

i5§ 31i8h M 2022 i5§ 31 ien /) 2021
B nINiein msiy) B Onimivin msij)
(RANH W 5) (RANH P 5)
NIGE1 igunn 1,424 5,802 31,854 128,849
§GUANUIANIMWMIANGIAND A& (152) (621) (30,427) (123,777)
wiglafimiggGwian - 56 - 730
figda ien 1,272 5,237 1,424 5,802
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G. (MAvIMISIOMIND - ajg (i)
BTN HI N SI§MImAGsRImy:

OIm S ST MINHUHIS
RIYINHE U gsmnisily HIgInY

o

HANIMNIYTA msij)n HANIMIYTA msij)

(RANBEINI 5)

17631 i25j 512022

AANSGIS 55,469 (1,254) 54,215 223,203
aN8ais) 11,196 (18) 11,178 46,020
66,665 (1,272) 65,393 269,223

15§31 i25j 512021

v

AANSGIS 62,359 (1,285) 61,074 248,815
aaNSeus 6,797 (139) 6,658 27,125

69,156 (1,424) 67,732 275,940
MUHMMITNA (AREWE)) 0.5% - 2% 0.25% - 1%

&. RANNS SHUHBNS - /g

i5§31 iat M2022 {5831 {26 M2021

gonimisin msiju HONIMNIETA msif)

(RANH W 5) (RANK TP 5)

al

fang1s Shuipsism hatiumuinaoigity 165,065,124 679,573,117 147,792,680 602,107,378
Bie aimsnsubminnuiisgsmnisniy (120,641) (496,679) (18,602) (75,784)
164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

vipupuisimsasiiminnuiisgsmnisaly ITRANN S SHUHTNSMSHsONIMYS

nmImang Ay (18vyY) 6.6 @
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&. RANAIS SHUHHNS - /g (0)

finndsmuilimwminntiimia

M2021

iGN

msif)

(RANH TP 5)

1561 igwnn
§GUANUANIMWMIANGIANG U s

uig)afimignwdan

v

NigEa1 iey

v

fanss Saynpnspimsimagonnimuys

EIMBHT

18,602 75,784 47,448 191,927
102,039 417,033 (28,846) (117,346)
3,862 1,203
120,641 496,679 18,602 75,784
fiimsnsiiiminnuhis
gemnisily Ay

msif)

(AANHEIH 5)

ugeu 156,976,846 (79,180) 156,897,666  645947,692

aniiing 8,088,278 (41,461) 8,046,817 33,128,746
165,065,124 (120,641) 164,944,483 679,076,438

5§31 ieg gizo21

Ugnm 145,051,577 (10,115) 145,041,462 590,898,916

aniiing 2,741,103 (8,487) 2,732,616 11,132,678
147,792,680 (18,602) 147,774,078 602,031,594

UUMIMATIZEITRANNO S SHUNIN ST ayBiBuhnnfiainng 29(f)

90. {gNjrunginjh I

msij)

(AANH TP 5)

Samuwgniys

[MARfH Shuupas

ORI MIUN G W

AANS{HIG G Y
imanAtiuuiuahsnimisims Chief Tower

322,403 1,327,333 298,006 1,214,078
275,958 1,136,119 566,043 2,306,059
85,333 351,316 80,236 326,881
8,095 33,327 29,290 119,327

- - 600,000 2,444,400
691,789 2,848,095 1,573,575 6,410,745

@ nomiming ady) (2uye) 6.6
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99. {§Nj Shuimi

mitn Lo, 1Ajaasipfs dandfinh
MM g usws  Anjer uims ShigElhdmA andeoh UL

mnisin gapunieln gapenietn gapeniein gopeniin ganenedn  gapenii gopeneis msigu

2022 (RANBEIRAG 5)
igiSs
i581 ewnn 880,000 1,649,514 333,185 1,649,920 608,472 77946 2,400,0007,599,037 30,958,477
migmuigy . 2,134 84,000 231,565 9,279 - 3,650,6283,977,606 16,256,476
ugladmigiwteyg : : : : : : . . 464,086
15631 %8;3 880,000 1,651,648 417,1851,881,485 617,751 77946 6,650,62812,176,643 50,131,239
His SRsasees
Nig§1 faunn 113,843 1,040,839 250,117 614,710 222,288 29,393 -2,271,190 9,252,828
fuaphmiwuTigs 43970 241,314 51,043 284,740 119,615 16,144 - 756,826 3,093,148
njﬁg]h‘ﬁmigigﬁmﬁm - : : : : . i 120,366
15831 %8@ 157,813 1,282,153 301,160 899,450 341,903 45,537 -3,028,016 12,466,342
G CHEOE
5831 ien 722,187 369,495 116,025 982,035 275,848 32,409 6,650,6289,148,627 37,664,897

b
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99. {§nj Shuimi(i)

miin o pjaaipis dandfinh
MM ymmi unswg  And uime Shiplhdma andeod UL

miin gapeniein ganunid ganunitn gapentn  gaosneth  gooenitn ganenin méu

2021 (RANB RN 5)
igiSs
i581 {swnn 880,000 1,610,126 324,745 902,852 474,268 74,481 - 4,266,472 17,257,880
midmuigy : 39,388 8,440 747068 134,204 6,456 2,400,000 3,335,556 13,569,042
MIUIn N - - : . : (2991) S 2991)  (12167)
g fimigBudag : : : : : : : - 143722
igfat ey 880,000 1,649,514 333,185 1649920 608,472 77946 2,400,000 7599037 30,958,477
ffis SRSE5E5SS
1581 feunn 69,873 716659 194,156 443912 125,608 16,561 - 1,566,769 6,337,581
ivaigumimufine 43970 324,180 55961 170,798 96,680 15,823 . 707412 2,877,752
mmqi;tmnj - - : . : (2991) S 2991)  (12167)
igafmigyBwiog : : : : : : : : 49,662
158t ey 113,843 1,040,839 250,117 614,710 222,288 29,393 2,271,190 9,252,828
sigiane
igat ieg 766,157 608,675 83,068 1,035,210 386,184 48,553 2,400,000 5,327,847 21,705,649
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9. Ai§i{iiMAI{g NjaunY

msif)
55805 (RANH W 5) (RANH TP 5)
igiSs
1581 faunn 2,681,335 10,923,759 2,681,335 10,846,000
MIjuuigy 306,040 1,250,785
gl AmignBwday : 124,479 : 77,759

2,987,375 12,299,023 2,681,335 10,923,759

-
(o)
Sl
. 2
-
Qo
=3

1561 iaunn 1,185,373 4,829,210 755,641 3,056,568
fuaphmiwuTigs 429,125 1,753,834 429,732 1,748,150
mﬁg]ti Amiundodan : 63,844 : 24,492
15631 ien ) 1,614,498 6,646,888 1,185,373 4,829,210
algene

15631 ien 1,372,877 5,652,135 1,495,962 6,094,549
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9 M {§ NjrintEg

Anjiguiin Mty eajhinkanhah QU

¢

1561 taunn 1,334,541 - 1,334,541 5,436,920
miGm 77,598 45767 123,365 504,193
iglhiimiggGwian - ] - 61,086
15531 ey u 1,412,139 45,767 1,457,906 6,002,199
ffis IRse5eSs

1561 feunn 355,317 - 355317 1,447,561
fueonumiwuiigs 255,415 - 255,415 1,043,881
migjﬁﬁmsgi;ﬁmﬁgnn : : : 22,942
15831 ey u 610,732 - 610,732 2,514,384
asgws:"e

15831 e 801,407 45,767 847,174 3,487,815

°
1

finjSiaguiis Shmmian

HONIMNIETA msif)

2021 (AANH W 5)
igiSs
1561 tgunn 763,753 3,089,381
migm 570,788 2,321,966
wiglaAmiBwiny ] 25,573
i5datien 1,334,541 5,436,920
ﬁﬁ%'észs&gssgs
1581 faunn 177,783 719,132
iunMIwunigs 177,534 722,208
mgﬂéﬁm:qsgﬁwﬁ% - 6,221
15831 ien " 355,317 1,447,561
slgsene
15831 ieg 979,224 3,989,359
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9G.NSIHMAGINNGD

A, tanuagibimasinnusigd

2022 2021
ganimisin msiju HONIMNTETA msif)

(AANH W 5) (RANK I 5)
i5§1 i3 wnn 265,663 1,082,311 214,169 866,314
gGUANURHINWMIANSIANGD U 649,049 2,652,663 382,347 1,555,388
nguBMAGIANM MU (419,822)  (1,715,813) (330,853)  (1,345910)
wigladimgywtag : 18,301 : 6,519
i5§31 ien 494,890 2,037,462 265,663 1,082,311

HSIMNYMBUSUIMANSNInYM anmimsmugignimivingidimadianmgingmng 20% iSGANUMTNG U NSHYUIN 1%
ISEUIUHRMWIETMANgHnEa ubniuvinmanniguigy isimudgsywaminuiismh

2. NgASNIN{SNJAINY - (UG

MIRUYINGNSNITE Njun/(Ganm) pudgmiwuligs msgsnnimys

pimsns 3§ @nysianmi  aipus
anuhes ey By P Sapn mighBwdag  sansisds
MNSHY  uimi  (gnjaony  AfaSD B8SNSGGUMS NSGGUANN LY

aninieTh ganiniets gananwinganeniein gopenin gapinietn oimeis mégu

(RANBRIEN 5)
1561 iaunn gi2022 3993 (101,742) (299,192) 321,196 15929 241,547 181,731 740,372
§gUaNFRINWMIAN

sinng et (11,856) 139,080 24,617 (24,165) 9,932 20,382 157990 645,705
mgﬂaﬁmiq:gﬁwﬁw . . . . ] . - 12,554
iGE 3118 §j 2022 (7,863) 37,338 (274,575) 297,031 25,861 261,929 339,721 1,398,631
igE1 12 vnn 2021 7,247 (20,703) (385,139) 402,900 (7811) 164,324 160,818 650,509
§guaNUFRINWMIAN

sinng et (3,254)  (81,039) 85947 (81,704) 23,740 77,223 20913 85,073
gl fmigyBwiag : : : : : : : 4,790
NiGE 3118 1 2021 3993 (101,742) (299,192) 321,196 15929 241,547 181,731 740,372
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msij)

(RANH TP 5) (RANH TP 5)

ngilmASInNQsig 649,049 2,652,663 382,347 1,555,388
ngnsnpithénn (157,990) (645,705)  (20,913) (85,073)
SamwngibimASianm 491,059 2,006958 361,434 1,470,315

miiﬁ]ﬁmﬁﬂSiﬂiLmﬁﬁiﬂﬂm iuﬂiLﬁfmSﬁﬂﬂmmﬁHLﬁmSﬁfmi 20% Gim: ﬁﬂmtﬁﬂmﬂii_@ﬁﬁiﬂﬂmi&ﬂﬁﬁim twminn
GIANM Y& ;ISHsanimys

2022 2021

gapinisin msi)u % gouEmwin msiju %

(AANH TP 5) (AANH W 5)

{mAsinnmysanng 1,977,233 8,080,952 1,368,125 5,565,534
NSIUMAGIANMMBH{MFIMI 20% 395,447 1,616,190 20 273,625 1,113,107 20
samwsms munhms 95,612 390,768 4.84 87,809 357,208 6
samwagiGimAsinnm 491,059 2,00695824.84 361,434 1,470,315 26
mimanemadiungming Agnimumignidy Sudwaigimmuingini«

9 & [MAUINIGATHATES

§31 ieg 2021

msij)

(AANH W 5)

AANS oIS 1,217,673 5,013,159 2996,174 12,206,413
AnN8ag) 3,536,171 14,558,416  5998,875 24,439,417
imavifine 227,899 938,260 161,653 658,574
AvIfesmuAnng 131,534,825 541,528,875 106,732,917 434,829,904

136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308

@ nomiming ady) (2uye) 6.6
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9 & [INAUINITATHABES (1)

iniviflivoaissspinsimagoaimy:

fi. MUMUTaNS s

i5§31 iey m2022

BONINIEIR

finndsmuilimwminntiimia

831 i85 §2o21

msif INIETH msif)

AN 5) (AANH W 5)

Wi 138 9,520,144 39,194,432 11,145,708 45,407,614
> 1191 3i8 14,744,078 60,701,369 14,947,223 60,894,987
> 3191 1218 95,589,532 393,542,103 78,664,039 320,477,295
> 1161 5§) 8,867,254 36,506,485 5,811,819 23,677,351
> bl 58 7,795,560 32,094,321 5,320,830 21,677,061
136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308

{5831 ia6 M2022

BONINIEIR

(AANH W 5)

msif)

(AANHEIH 5)

B, MUHIMMITNA

194,573 801,057 64,210 261,592
136,321,995 561,237,653 115,825,409 471,872,716
136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308

2022 2021

AANSGIg

ann8eus]
imvifiuas
mavifmsmufansg

0.00% to 0.75% 0.00%
0.75% to 4.25%  0.75% to 4.00%
5.50% to 7.00% 5.50% to 7.00%
1.80% to 8.00%  1.50% to 8.00%

nmImang Ay (18vyY) 6.6 @
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99. HYGANAS
i5831 iat M2022 i5§31 {2 M2021
gapimisin msiju HANIMINTA msif)
(RANH W 5) (RANH TP 5)
Ay 1,200,000 4940,400 1,600,000 6,518,400
MITMATHI 2,262 9,313 3,156 12,858
1,202,262 4949713 1,603,156 6,531,258

mit{ppuisHstAnNIsinhgin s s aimYs

i5§31 ieg M2022

J

>

i5§31 iag M2021

o

HANIMNTYTA msif) HONIMNIETA msif)

(AANH W 5) (AANH W 5)

1581 founn 1,603,156 6,531,258 2,001,817 8,097,350
GaMuwmigm 79,123 323,376 99,123 403,232
MIMANSUH MSIG (80,017) (327,029) (97,784) (397,785)
micH{pgjouTis|mAIiY (400,000)  (1,634,800) (400,000) (1,627,200)
wigladimigySwtag 56,908 55,661
1,202,262 4,949,713 1,603,156 6,531,258

o

Hyian andubmangioonith Shdsmemmasgumsi magln umswvinjisiun oiglst fag gi2022 688

23
> o

J

1,200,000 §AnimisTh (5§31 18 512021 §§8 1,600,000 {ai MiwiH)9 HSTANUMSUHEANFTNNI[NES

£
v

NAIMART HIMMIM ignUiIRy Muiang [gnyma
megsH
Chief Financial (Group)
Cambodia limited 5% 15622105 §12020 {5622 i8n §12025 gsmsmime

gl2020 smimsggummsSal ammimiisnym wgnomisopuIsiapuis: wiginivgsnnd i ghmin

15624 1853
q NERM A GITRIENMI
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{5831 ia6 §2022

BONINIEIR

finndsmuilimwminntiimia

oy

5531 2t M2021

IN6TH msif)

msif)

-]

(AANH W 5) (AANH W 5)

1361 18HRAN

MITSHW:INGIEm 1,605,981 6,542,767 2,014,503 8,148,665

snmwmiim 306,040 1,250,785

MIMANSUHIG 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291

imitfisianuniicgpmevi (79,809) (326,179) (98,154) (399,291)

wigladmgywiag (426,867)  (1,744,605) (408,522)  (1,661,867)

15631 ien ) 65,432 55,969
i 1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767

i5831 {2 M2021

msif) HANIMNIYA msif)

(RANH W 5) (RANK TP 5)

imamumuianss

fiothi 15 480,009 1,976,197 506,684 2,064,231

fi1191 58 1,108,344 4,563,052 1,108,353 4,515,430

el 550 70,000 288,190 190,000 774,060
1,658,353 6,827,439 1,805,037 7,353,721

BRsMITmAta sl (173,199) (713,060) (199,056) (810,954)

fniguyHjguIvisinRRuS) 1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605981 6,542,767

Tmams

LR 410,864 1,691,527 431,003 1,755,907

It In sy 1,074,290 4,422,852 1,174,978 4,786,860
1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767

nmImang Ay (18vyY) 6.6 @
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2022 2021
GopiEnistn msiu HONINIBTH Mo
(AANH W 5) (AANH W 5)
mimATEANUAR SN 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291
samwangilhndag)
iw:ing 84 afeognid
[gnjngitumsiignNu 160,435 655,698 137,091 557,686
240,244 981,877 235,245 956,977
2. fgsinumssguanisininwmiaNUu)i§Rimis
2022 2021
gaimiin msij HANIMINTA msij)
(AANH W 5) (RANH TP 5)
WU)igRmANREMAIURUEMI
migmattianuafiasn 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291
samwnisufhnfiaugn
iw:ing 8 afugnid
[snjroRgiRUM SNy 160,435 655,699 137,091 557,686
240,244 981,878 235,245 956,977
WU SRIMAARREMAVIINYINS
mignaMAIEY SRt 426,867 1,744,605 408,522 1,661,867
UG U RimA 1bndaug) 667,111 2,726,483 643,767 2,618,844
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96. GANMIKjHY

{5831 iat M2022 {5831 i2t M2021
gapimiin msiju IN6TH msif)
(AANBEIN 5) (RANBEINI 5)
[mAINSuigy Suimnieuli 1954 8,045 40,320 164,264
NgNHIgNH 88,612 364,816 58,383 237,852
g 21,485 88,454 92,451 376,645
112,051 461,315 191,154 778,761
9&. iiitgs
n. ifugs

ﬁmmiLﬁfmsmSmUmﬁLﬁj{iiﬁmLﬁ’HtﬂS Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited in ﬂijﬁﬁiﬂ SUiﬁﬁiGjﬁ
iLmHGJTUiUﬁJ British Vlrgln Islands i[,ﬁ“l'iﬁﬂjaﬁ ’Um 1771142 1IN SN ﬁjtﬁ"]Sfj Um ﬁJ'ﬁiS’i Vickhams Cay Il, Road
Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands

ifvgsigumsn:ud #sdn NN GRWIVAIENMI NSESS 75,000,000 §ANIMIBTA (PNANEH 300 NEANST) )
A ugnisisnuggivumnginmsisniimys

Chief Financial Group
(Cambodia) Limited 75,000,000 100 75,000,000 75,000,000 100 75,000,000
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9&. iiugS (1)

8. GSULHﬁmHUQUJmﬁ
QSULﬁﬁmﬁﬁgﬁjﬂnﬁLﬁfm SUiﬁﬁiﬂimHBﬁim MiaTmens FUUME I UNHR9 h ﬁi?mSﬁsmﬁUGUjﬂTm [UumB{umag
iUﬁjﬁmmimﬁiSﬁﬁm“l

S]iij931 18175 mzozz ﬁmmimsmm Lmﬁﬁmﬂmiﬁ\ﬂ@ﬁ iﬂGSULﬁﬁmUUGUJﬂnﬁ ﬁ%S 276,140 uﬂﬂmiﬁiﬁ (1 l;J §31 Bi;i
m2021 g mSiﬁi Fl[,mﬁﬁmﬂmiﬁ‘j‘l Gn iﬂGSULﬁﬁmﬁﬁgﬁjﬂnﬁ GSS 601,471 u[lﬂﬁ-m’tﬁﬁ)"l

rouRIS] MYwESIMI ANHSIaYHPHS gFImnY

NRIRH ISR ﬁj’ISU]Im igimsuitns HUIMI §SUHIMBU U] mﬁjiﬁ
uss uss uss uss KHR'000

(Note 5)

igat iag ge022

Aimsnsaanamennmimiisnym 617 1,883,532 4,131 1,888,280 7,774,049

AITMSHS ANSIFUTME A.1.8.ULH.H 9 1,272 120,556 85 121913 501918

gafimigySwdag : : : - 104,243

EEER ) (655) 1,762,976 4,046 1,766,367 7,167,888
igat iag geo2t

imsasmutsmimAisngm 692 1,492,326 17,236 1,510,254 6,152,775

RTNSHS ANSIFUTME A.1G.ULHA 9 1,425 18,602 - 20,027 81,594

gafimigySwdag : : - 31,877

qSUENMETSUIME(2) (733) 1,473,724 17,236 1,490,227 6,039,304

IGIMAGIANMIRNGRISISSUBMBUSY[ME (7-8) 276,140 1,128,584

V0. HANH AT NIGIN WM R{M

NG fhansimi vy

i5§31 ieg m2022 i5§31 iag M2021
GapiEnisin msiju HONINIBTH M1
(AANH W 5) (AANH W 5)
ﬁm'i{,mﬁga%" (BANHWI 6) 3,180,319 13,093,373 3,040,031 12,385,086
hvifimygwsnmimiisagm (s 7) 24,155,713 99,449,070 23,967,685 97,644,349
NATIANEWENNIND G (FANHIW 8) 66,665 274,460 69,156 281,742

27,402,697 112,816,903 27,076,872 110,311,177

> '

ﬁﬂﬁLmﬁSﬁﬁj‘lﬁ[,mﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁllﬂijﬁﬂﬁLmﬁfjﬁiﬁLmﬁﬁimmqmﬁmmimﬁmﬁﬁmSﬁLmﬁUi@mﬁﬁjﬁS]mImSW
fumemuiangiiy winudis Uﬁﬁmﬁis “ ﬁgiUﬂﬂiS[‘QﬂjﬁjﬁﬁmﬁiS° ﬁ[_UUnﬁLUitﬂﬂj Sﬂﬁﬁ:iflji:i[_ﬁjﬁ“l

asimA Shandiminsyumgaminvfigsnwmii unsupoisiginwmiadup§n i momjbnans
1ig18h it umsuinmahig
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9. GANNIATGAMIEM

2022 2021
gaumiin - msiyj ANIMIYTA msi
(AANH W 5) (RANK I 5)
Ganmijm
fANSS FhynpNs 14,623,673 59766952 11,218,837 45,638,229
inividisinmmifisnymh 28,654 117,109 3,989 16,227
(ATIANYWENNINN 664,970 2,717,732 848,199 3,450,474
15,317,297 62,601,793 12,071,025 49,104,930
Samwmigma
(mAvfivasHRgNs 6,954,039 28,421,157 4,925,454 20,036,747
astnnm 79,123 323,376 99,123 403,232
SanunRiiagn 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291
7,112,971 29,070,712 5,122,731 20,839,270
GaNmAIgMIgMA 8,204,326 33,531,081 6,948,294 28,265,660
Y S o by -
VY. fiijy SUGAMWRT{HINNANGG
2022 2021
GopiEnistn msiu HONINIBTH Mo
(AANH W 5) (AANH W 5)
sapmnimaAniis Shdapmnipithan
igicunny ShimAnipIgh g 10,556 43,142 4,965 20,198
samwijmAniEShtamusithan
TNy W mi 16,595 67,824 5,883 23,932
GamuagItighAniy Shtnmes nifpithan ajg (6,039) (24,682) (918) (3,734)
vm. GANN/( N6 ) KR
2022 2021
INYTH Mo
(AANH W 5) (FANH W 5)
Sinnmeaggimiys jBwtanuig (24,197) (98,893) (100,509) (408,871)
Sanigh g 120,979 494,441 5,026 20,446
96,782 395,548 (95,483) (388,425)
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Ve, MinHvhaigigsmnisnigisauninAnimin

)

2022 2021
gaimiin msij HANIMIYIA msij)
(RANH W 5) (RANH TP 5)
ATIANYwENNINN 152 621 30,427 123,777
NS SHUnuNs (102,039) (417,033) 28,846 117,346
(101,885) (416,404) 59,273 241,123
V. GAMGILUHH
2022 2021
IN6TH msif)
(AANH W 5) (AANH W 5)
[mAngingd SagmAnns 2,276,495 9,304,035 2,145,560 8,728,138
goamininmamin 99,463 406,505 92,767 377,376
Samwigjh GyRon 118,507 484,338 98,061 398912

2,494,465 10,194,878 2,336,388 9,504,426

V9. iy
2022 2021
Gopinistn msiju HONINIBTH M)

(AANH W 5) (AANH W 5)

180y Suuimi 756,826 3,093,148 707,412 2,877,752
aGifmaignjany 429,125 1,753,834 429,732 1,748,150

1 nag 255,415 1,043,881 177,534 722,208
1,441,366 5,890,863 1,314,678 5,348,110
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V. GAMB{BEATRIEHY

2022 2021
gapimiin msiju 7 msif)
(AANH W 5) (AANHEIE 5)
nipnmian hnidh nginh s 632,943 2,586,838 575,575 2,341,439
teohim i 542,626 2,217,712 545,697 2,219,895
samwspi 8 migpwmngny 247,418 1,011,197 140,180 570,252
Samuwilaiasgn Sumigu 160,435 655,698 137,091 557,686
samwén ifh 135,162 552,407 115,166 468,495
Samuilmisnngsh 116,374 475,621 129,608 527,245
samwasgimitnGw Shmismigih sigugsi
YUESHY 59,384 242,702 51,563 209,758
samwgagu Shise 18,818 76,909 16,231 66,028
Snmwa§ae 14,893 60,868 9,655 39,277
Samuwigihg 352,067 1,438,898 171,209 696,479
2,280,120 9,318,850 1,891,975 7,696,554
VC. WS

fiImi ﬁmLﬁﬁtﬂ SULﬁﬁJ’ﬁg ﬂj[)ﬁfmsmsmﬁmﬁ[,ﬁjﬁi‘ﬁ UjLﬁﬁtﬂS CHIEF FINANCIAL GROUP (CAMBODIA) LIMITED
mLﬁH’iﬂSi’H iu[U[TISﬁ Uﬁf] Qﬁﬁi[ﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁ iSLﬁIGﬁi BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS

RvimI NS IS BNy WESMANSHonMimys

¢ORGSH MmAMANg

vt sty invtsizumsagmemy Sumiptpdmanigisilnmi

(U SuR Il S/RvUISMARS iputsAngpuisumaonin Isfivingw umagSRuHIM WU oIv
[ 1M

RAN:(RURRATNS Y uguitumSHgaams §ﬁﬁm§ﬁamﬁ§m{jﬁm hink §{ﬁLﬁﬁLﬁﬁ
ﬁjﬁﬁmnmﬁiﬁﬁwﬁmmmi inwuEan: U YR WTIEN U NUUR
AuuAnn (n:hpivimi yBsivimi) isnamiy

nmImang Ay (18vyY) 6.6 @



insiFsmhywanidunhigis:

finndsmuilimwminntiimia

D4 [

VG, WHSIME (§)

NPT

o '

AHAIINE SIURHR RO GOS8 Y

2022 2021
gapimisin msijw HONIMNIETA msif)
(AANH W 5) (AANHEye 5)
HAIN S STV HARURR NS Y 184,747 148,056 148,056 603,180
8. UMY WG
i5831 iat M2022 {5831 i2 M2021
gapimiin msijw HONIMNIYTA msif)
(AANBEIN 5) (RANBEINI 5)
RANSIS SHMIgMATHIHISG N
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 3,612,289 14,871,794
AN {RUTANANS Y 390,963 1,609,595 185,598 756,126
4,003,252 16,481,389 185,598 756,126
{mnivig) Shmigavhifpigan
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 13,890 57,185
AN (RUTRRATNS T 180,683 743,872 64,210 261,592
194,573 801,057 64,210 261,592
imanfigugisinun
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited - ; 600,000 2,444,400
HYGNNAS ShmifAvRIHIgH
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 1,202,262 4,949,713 1,603,156 6,531,258
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i5831 iat M2022

finndsmuilimwminntiimia

i5831 i2 M2021

gouimiin msij HANINIYTA msif)

(AANB I 5) (AANBEINNT 5)
Gamuminnmnvi)
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 1,468 6,000
AN RUTANASY 6,263 25,597 254 1,033
sapmumigmANsaNnS
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 67,703 276,702
RN RURRATNS T 21,143 86,411 24,683 100,410
g
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 72,000 294,264 72,000 292,896
HSUANUMSTH
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 400,000 1,634,800 400,000 1,627,200
MIMANHSTANUM S
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 79,123 323,376 99,123 403,232
1RGN
Chief Securities Limited 288,000 1,177,056 264,000 1,073,952
me'imﬁﬁfliﬂei' Chief Tower
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 3,960,000 16,184,520 2,640,000 10,739,520
iminnigpiviuam
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 600,000 2,452,200
GamuwiGmign
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 180,000 735,660 180,000 732,240
AN RUTANANS Y 120,000 490,440 120,000 488,160
MIgNHGAMUS i bs/Bgasijh
Chief Securities Limited 73,177 299,074 314,174 1,278,060
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 38,184 156,058
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Ve, MijptENIMSANIMIG

o miuwvyefhunfiwsuninhviimingsaimys

e  UNSAWHANNS
. méﬁtﬁéi@i

. UNBAWANGIMAMWITIA 8

o UnSﬁ[ﬁiuﬁE}S

miLUﬁlﬁSﬁUnSﬁlﬁﬁ mﬁmﬁﬁjﬁﬁiLmULﬁ ﬁflS’Lﬂimfﬁ Itﬂ[IJ’UT]Sﬁ[IﬁS[‘UﬁUﬁmI

Tnfwaniingis:

Amnsninninudsmon) wgnng

nomigesifimaguniantiimin8aygg gomAgaspundwian Samnmeymmmima ifgjpophumfwiiiminwa
2RIf:IG

winsisguninntimis

aminsignjngiimin Sadapudiiminidunadiivmsivaoigifvnsamiwohigsgsnnimys

>

BONINTEIR

{5831 126 §2022

msif)

(AANH W 5)

>

FNIMNIEIN

{5831 {26 M2021

msif)

(AANHEIE 5)

gnjrsngnimin

B AGHIE 3,180,319 13,093,373 3,040,031 12,385,086
nfvifmywanmind isfym 39,737,554 163,599,510 38,146,231 155,407,745
MATIHMNYW GOHMINN 65,393 269,223 67,732 275,940
gangs Shunwas 164,944,483 679,076,438 147774078 602,031,594
1§ NjEoRYIRhY 284,053 1,169,446 1,195,333 4,869,787
g njrongimig i 208,211,802 857,207990 190,223,405 774,970,152
dnpmdimig

mAvdivaaitne 136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308
HYANM 1,202,262 4949713 1,603,156 6,531,258
Ganunfiagn 1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767
BNt o 23,439 96,498 132,771 540,909
LMV U 139,227,423 573,199,300 119,231,527 485,749,242
gnjronyiminag 68,984,379 284,008,690 70,991,878 289,220,910
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Ve, MijptENIMSANIMIG (1)
A.Un8Rwinnns

mifwdnnns  Amunidwituifeimsminauiignuiigin  wosiiuidiswannm umiinnniénn
eS8’ ms vingma gﬁ almAIgImeRgusnaEnmI1 INIAwsannsifa ﬁﬁnmmﬁmﬁﬁﬁn‘j ghmiint
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ShULﬁUULﬁHmﬁmﬁHﬁjiSUnSﬁ[ijﬁﬂn(}'ls sauninn: miRwmmagigyan iKW Sisw 99 mikw
ﬁnﬂmSﬁmmimﬁUﬁSiﬁjmSn[UiSLmﬁGnﬂnj Sﬁmimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁjmu[Uiﬁﬁi@jﬂﬁ]ﬁﬁjﬁﬂ’[p’]ﬁ fif Sayupes Sami

i saisyingidumuginismien NSINWHERE YusMAMUIW: ngm NG OTmARY 1waigs
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. viinimusitawian®s idgimimimamifimise ShAandgiSRTinumimwnigisignjugn lyjnsginm
hwnigsangsivrAtisunwnspugnghw  Sndvimumspaidgmipaouiaum Idwignaigig)am
UguNT4

o ANAMIPYURUNSAW MUIRGisiENjunY WEMA sANUIRY MINBHARANNS FabgSan(a 1

. uvifingpudnnpnilniinviyw arsulnisnugsamominssn ShMIUgEN fANSSUNATGHE
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MoaHpEuvRTIgm e mufsamanaunSAwipighmamipaiSympeiy

. iﬂUGSﬁ?mUﬁmSﬂmIﬁﬁmmﬁjﬁﬁmimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂmsmﬁ(}ﬁ IHH‘ISﬁ\ILﬁﬁHSﬁJUﬂSﬁﬁjﬁﬂﬂmS mﬁjmﬂjﬂﬁiﬂS
mﬁGﬁiS"]mﬂiHmﬁﬁ Sﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂlﬁjﬁﬁﬁ]mﬁjﬁﬁﬁ‘limﬁﬁﬁ ﬁﬂﬂmSmﬁGﬁ"J

. iﬂUGSﬁ?mUﬁiﬁS]miﬁﬁ‘mmﬁﬁfﬁﬁ‘li%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂmSiﬂﬁGﬁ J‘HmsmiLﬁﬁﬂSﬁJUﬂSﬁﬁjﬁﬂﬂmS ﬁ‘IIUm[Uﬂﬁ’tﬂS
mﬁsmmmmﬁmﬁﬁ Sﬂ?ﬁﬁﬂlﬁjﬁﬁmmﬁjﬁﬁmimﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂm%mﬁ(}ﬁﬂ

. MR anmimsimusitnnw SHiATRghmAsinp Shifejmsiivipisidgsupinsiiiigihwaily Suhe
tmignuisnnasifingn

. uiinmiwniy  Shdidhimiaimum swianasitugnimhyunstanioopasptpy Sufsswidy]
honigiuniiwsanns Shwppmvifannisungibminnvisnnasiiigng ifmiguimnuns Shinng
uSiuinmmi sEymamting ifgfilnngaminsinemspidngh ubmipopaumiiwsanssy
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VE. MIPUEHIMSALNIMIG (6)
AUNSAWRANN S ()
(). MIAUIASUNSAWHANSS (5)

. miSﬁﬁmﬁﬂmSﬁamimmmﬁﬁit{]amﬁiuﬁj@JLmﬁum mifptph ShERTET
M

numnsuiinigiapinsi)us Sausia

(). MITMEFANMARANAS

MNHBIMTS: sinmAfNSHinANMIRANSS %smmmmﬁ@ it ﬁmmfmsﬁmﬁhmmmmmmm hAMS MAIS
msidfmsaiansmanyumuiangissanns Savupasguanaddnsisidamamut §2 Suds ﬁgssﬁ Lmﬁ
isLsnjﬁjﬁﬁm:mfﬁmﬁHﬁj isigumni MIMUUN M MAIYINH G nmmimmmjﬁysﬁﬁmﬁmmim ant{ma § i

iﬁﬁﬂGLmﬁiS’imS‘lmimﬁiSﬁﬁm <h L&?ﬂjﬁﬁﬁtﬂi@fﬁiﬁjﬁﬂ fEsmsunifwighimiann Uﬁﬁnnmsmhsﬁ Shiis
i‘B’Um ﬂiﬁﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬂmﬂﬁﬂﬂm&iﬁ]ﬁf‘l

u

ST MIn e
#ANGISHYM 66,665 66,665 274,460
fIim St SiimInul (1,272) (1,272) (5,237)
T 65,393 65,393 269,223
UHHISIINMIN® S
HANSISHYM 160,992,533 160,992,533 662,806,259
gangsufisn 3,364,252 3,364,252 13,850,625
fang1simuagih 598,133 598,133 2,462,514
MUl 104,543 104,543 430,404
mHvH 5,663 5,663 23,315
160,992,533 3,364,252 708,339 165,065,124 679,573,117
imsnsiUminaul (84,904) (5,365) (30,372) (120,641) (496,679)
Higiung 160,907,629 3,358,887 677967 164,944,483 679,076,438
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VE. MIPUENIMSAWwNIMIG (5)

[3Y
1

AUNSAWRANN S ()

(). MIMARANMARANS (5)

1NIBTH msij)
(RANH TR 5)
U ISTEIMIN N
gangsnygm 69,156 . ] 69,156 281,742
imSHSUTMINHUH (1,424) - ] (1,424) (5,802)
HETE 67,732 : ] 67,732 275,940
NS SHULPNes
gangsngm 147,339,117 - - 147,339,117 600,259,563
gungsuiidn . 453,251 ] 453,251 1,846,545
AN SIMuaIh : : 312 312 1,270
147,339,117 453,251 312 147,792,680 602,107,378
fIimSHSIimMINHUH (18,154) (136) (312) (18,602) (75,784)
HETE 147,320,963 453,115 - 147,774,078 602,031,594
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Ve, MifptEHIMSALNIMIG ()

HUNSAWRANN S (5)
(). MIMBEHANMARANNS (5i)

mnyamgmuimadivipupuisdimsasiGismnisniginnns Shgupas o fgumiwvTigemuiuaigife:

15§31 ig §2022

ECL ECL ECL
WHWmMU N0y wmamii

~ U 1

mignuRiANQsifingn

1551 181N §12022 18,154 136 312 18,602 75,784

Ui UM n Ul

BANSISiTIgH

- MigIiamamus 1 121 (121)

- magiiamamug 2 (130) 130

- magidamameug 3 (66) : 66
soyrnyUliing 290,177 2,346 2,130 294,653 1,204,247
mihatiigihimagisaimsns

HUMINAURSAUIHUHINNT  (223,352) 2,874 27,864  (192,614) (787,213)
gl fmigySwtan : : : : 3,861
mianuasAnnsinagn

15631181 12022 84,904 5,365 30,372 120,641 496,679
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Ve, MifptEHIMSANIMIG ()
AUNSAWHANNS (1) '
(). MIMAFANMARANNS (5)

mnuamimuimasfvipopuisaimsssibasmaisniginnms Shuupns g figmiwviigsmuinais s @)

2021

v
=2
[l
w
—
ot
Qo
A3
=,

Gamamigt SamamiSe  SamAmugs

ECL ECL ECL
1212 INMYWNWMN INMYWNLM L QUi

GaiEiete  gouEiein msiju

(BANH IR 5)

migRuREANnsiingn
1551 teunn §i2021 47,448 : - 47,448 191,927

UiPUgRIT IS8 1]
BANSNSiAHgH
- migiiamamus 1
- migiiamamug 2
- miigiiamameug 3

wayrnydiing 8,486 136 312 8,934 36,344
minaitigihimagisaimes

ubminaui Shuigup i (37,780) : - (37,780) (153,689)
gl dmigySwtog : : : : 1,202
minnuisanasinugn

15831 feg gizo21 18,154 136 312 18,602 75,784
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VE. MIPUEHINSALNIMIG (6)
A.UNIRWHANNS (8) '
(). MIMAFANMARANNS (5)

mabanimuimaiivipupuisianns Shunpaspumiwviigsmuinaigifivs

i5831 {2t M2022
Gamamuigt SamamiSe  SamAmugs
ECL ECL ECL
1212 INMYWHILM L 0GR LML fIu

IR §ANIMIYTH msif)

BANARIHIN 5)

niginaguigss ieunn 512022 147339117 453,251 312 147,792,680 602,107,378

UipUpUBIEIA G

- migiiamamug 1 135,264 (135,264)

- mitgiiamameug 2 (2,182,052) 2,182,052

- magiiamamus 3 (706,277) . 706,277

soyrongUliming 60,195,206 1,004,374 1,536 61,201,116 250,128,961
Ul{pUTEUATg (43,788,725) (140,161) 214 (43928,672) (179,536,482
igafimigySwiag : : : . 6,873,260
gt URIGEst feg gi2022 160,992,533 3,364,252 708,339 165,065,124 679,573,117

ECL ECL ECL
1212 HMyWwMmwm 10y wmnamig fuivu

~ U 1 1

msif)

(BANH TN 5)

niginiunig§ isunn gi2o21 93,860,728 : - 93,860,728 382,388,606
ifpUpaigIn
- migiiamamus 1
- migiiamamug 2
- migiiamamug 3

s ayrnyUlining 38,070,193 453,251 312 38,523,756 156,714,639
ulpugualg 15,408,196 : - 15,408,196 62,680,541
njtg:]aﬁmﬁ%sgﬁ Wi : : : : 323,592
gt uUSigEst feg gizozt 147,339,117 453,251 312 147.792,680 602,107,378
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HOMIME: '
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o BANNSSHUNPNS

pomiaihaimsasiuiminnud mudgsituiagiamianuisanasiihsninmywmwmu ubniuhisms ha
tmmuminnuisanasifingn 1218 gonhimus

. ﬁ“lﬁSi[iﬂﬁiﬂiEiﬂIULﬁUﬂﬂﬂi iumLﬁfmSﬁﬂﬂﬁmmSmSﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂmsmﬁ mmm’umsmﬁmmn 84
. aﬁﬁiﬂﬂmimfﬁiﬁjﬁSIGHﬁ iuﬂjUnSﬁ[ﬁﬁﬂﬂmSﬁsmSiﬁSWjﬁmﬁﬂﬁS mﬁmﬁnmiggmﬁﬂm il?UﬁuUﬁ“l

nQMiBsmsnsin mumniuhinnnsnsunifwanu éim:aﬁﬁmhtﬁ:@ig figig)nig
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a
2

ﬁiﬁLmﬁmjaUﬁmﬂtﬂimfﬁ ﬁﬁi[ﬁ N 1218 US]Uﬂ‘m[UUﬁGG nwminn« aﬁﬁmﬂtﬂimfﬁiﬁﬂijggﬂjﬁﬂﬂij
mimﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂmSIHHGﬁ 1218 LﬁfmSmﬁQﬁm aﬁﬁiﬂﬂ’lﬂimiﬁ ﬁiﬁﬁﬁuﬂfﬂﬁ‘r‘ﬂﬂi‘& 179
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Grow with us today

CHAIRMAN'’S MESSAGE

k£ ‘The Chief Way’, our unique corporate
philosophy, is a way to build the mutual trust
and partnership with our customers, a way
to the prosperity and a way that our business
is conducted ethically and sincerely. vy

Chairman's Report

It seems that we are coming back to normal life in 2022, however many sectors

still facing great challenging, however awaiting for the global economy flourishing
again we have to face the surge of the interest hike of USD commencing from the

Mr. CHAU Chung Kai Peter last quarter of 2022 which has adversely affected many industry in Cambodia.
Founder & Chairman
Thanks to the digital reforming of Chief bank, we enhanced our mobile banking by

infroducing more flexible and powerful payment solution, and launching the micro
loan apps in serving the local people’s instant needs, in return Chief Bank can still keep growing fast in terms of the customers
onboarding at a difficult time. We also planning to open a new branch in the Aeon mall 3, to better serve the local customers.

When expanding our business globally we have been integrating and evolving our customer-centric business model with
modern information technology in order to provide a wide range of financial solution as well as processing a transaction in
a most efficient manner. In addition we provide sufficient professional and up-to-date training course for our staff to take the
lead of the industry at anytime. Our strategy is witnessed by the success of a rapid and consistent growth for the last decade.

Currently our team comprises the local elite employee and assistance from the parent company in Hong Kong. Chief Bank
is a part of a corporate culture based on the principles of integrity, prudence and transparency.

| suggest you to visit our website, download our apps and come to our branch, you will find a tailor-made exclusive service for you.

Welcome to Chief Cambodia Bank!

Mr. CHAU Chung Kai Peter
Founder & Chairman
Chief Group

° Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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MESSAGE FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

k£ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc
is young but dynamic, utilizing a business
model which is customized and best suited
to needs of clients in Cambodia. ¥y

Message from the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

A warm welcome to Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc!

In 2022, Chief Bank continued to make good strategic progress executing its strategy
Dr. Soeung Morarith and delivered an improving financial performance. The external environment we
Chief Executive Officer faced was mixed, the war in Ukraine created significant uncertainty in the markets.

However, the global economy remained resilient, with the recent relaxation of

COVID-19 restrictions in China providing more grounds for optimism in 2023.

We remain stronger and more profitable while preserving strong liquidity coverage ratio and capital positions, although
clearly impacted by credit challenges and cost of funding. As hard-working frontline staff members and even in the back office
team, the deposit collections not only from individual clients, high-net-worth clients, local enterprises, but also from the world’s
leading insurance company and local government, the figures have increased up to over 130 million US dollars while the
recognition and brand awareness we receive from many entities in pandemic time. The embracing of digital transformation
trend, we actively promote Chief Easy App, Bakong KHQR code, and our online transactions so on, that increased significantly.
Building a good foundation for our quality loan business was our main objective; therefore we have been working well to
widen Chief Bank’s deposit bases. As of December 2022, the amount of deposits outstanding were over USD136 million
which is 17.8% higher than that of December 2021 with the total asset being reached USD220 million resulting net income
recorded nearly 50% increasing from 2021. Our strategic transformation continues to progress well. Our strength derives
from strategic actions we have taken over the years to secure our solid foundations. Our efforts during that time were obvious;
the benefits became clear last year when we came through an extraordinary real-life stress test with financial and operational
resilience. Since our establishment in late 2013, we have been executing the strategic action plans, building on those stronger
foundations. Our refreshed strategic priorities are to be a purpose-led organization, and how those are guiding us in the
years ahead. The refreshed strategic priorities which we share link directly to our purpose to drive prosperity with our unique
diversity and we have geared up to develop the skills, mindset and capabilities to deliver. They will take us beyond what we
are currently doing, how we currently think and extend our existing scale and impact. We will continue to unlock the power
of our unique physical footprint by digitally delivering our clients best-in-class emerging and developed market capabilities,
insights and solutions. We will reinforce our strong credentials in the market segments by building high loyalty and trust through
offering our clients personalized wealth advice based on superior insights. We now have a range of proven digital capabilities
as highlighted above and our re-modeled risk framework has been thoroughly stress-tested, which means we can substantially
and economically scale up our mass market retail presence. We will do this with enhanced data analytics and a superior end-
to-end digital experience, developing opportunities on our own and with our reliable partners. We are fundamentally changing
the way we work, accelerating our time-to-market and increasing productivity with cross-functional teams driving agreed clients
and productivity outcomes. We are driving innovation to improve our clients’ experience, increase our operational efficiency
and tap new sources of income, creating opportunities that we can foresee over time representing the majority of our income;
re-committing to delivering an improving return on equity (ROE).

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. e
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MESSAGE FROM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Last but certainly not least, on behalf of top management of Chief Bank Plc, | would like to sincerely express my sincere
thanks to all of our clients for selecting Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc to be their long-term business partners.
With this, | would also like to thank our dedicated colleagues for their tremendous efforts to maintain our operational
resilience, our respectful Chairman Mr Chau, Board members, INED, the leadership teams, all officials of the National
Bank of Cambodia (NBC) and relevant local authorities, for their respective on-going unwavering support given to me
in fulfilling my position as CEO. | am extremely proud of what we have achieved together in 2022, and | look forward
to the opportunities that 2023 will bring.

Together, we are confident that we are delivering a better, innovative bank, a bank of first choice, a bank that our
employees, customers and stakeholders can genuinely trust.

We look forward to welcoming and best serving you.

Sincerely yours,

Dr. Morarith SOEUNG
Chief Executive Officer
Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.

e Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAU Chung Kai Peter
Founder & Chairman, Chief Group

Mr. Chau Chung Kai Peter, the founder and chairman of Chief Group, is a
successful entrepreneur in Hong Kong who built his enterprise from scratch.
Born in Chaozhou, China, Mr. Chau entered the Hong Kong banking industry
in 1958, Mr. Chau was a senior banking executive in Chong Hing Bank
(1959-1962) and Bangkok Bank (1962-1970). He has strong commercial

banking experience, leading innovative product development and sound

banking operations during the development of Hong Kong's banking industry.
Mr. Chau founded his own company Chietf Investment Co. in 1979. He
gained valuable experiences, being exposed to the global capital markets and
financial industry, in the past half century. The faith of integrity and sincerity is
the vital spirit that Mr. Chau has pursued for over 30 years when he operates
the company. Till present Chief Group is one of the largest securities broker
in Hong Kong in terms of the number of branches and one of the leading
companies in the industry for the diversified financial products and service.
Mr. Chau also engages actively in charitable activities where he believes that
education is the foundation of nation-building. Commencing from 2006, Mr.
Chau has continuously donated as individual and founder of the company,
school buildings in various deprived areas of Mainland China, including over
50 primary schools and 2 secondary schools.

Ms. NG Siu Mui, Fion

Director

Member of the Risk Management Committee

Member of the Internal Audit Committee

Member of the Human Resource Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Member of the Board of Director

Education

®  Master of Business Administration, The University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong.

m Professional Diploma in Corporate Governance and Directorship, Hong Kong.

Working Experience

®  General Manager, Chief Group Ltd. Hong Kong (current).

Director and Responsible Officer, Chief Securities Ltd. Hong Kong (current).
Director and Responsible Officer, Chiet Commodities Ltd. Hong Kong (current).
Director, Chief Great China Assets Management Ltd. Hong Kong (current).

Director, Chief Financial Services Ltd. Hong Kong (current).

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. °
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Wai Chuen, Patrick

Director

Member of the Risk Management Committee

Member of the Internal Audit Committee

Member of the Human Resource Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Member of the Board of Director

Education
m Certified Public Accountant, HKICPA, Hong Kong.
m Fellow Member, ACCA.

Working Experience
® Financial Controller, Chief Group Ltd (current).

®  Audit Manager, Chan And Chan Certified Public Accountants.

----------------------------------------------------------

Mr. YE Haiya, Michael

Director

Member of the Risk Management Committee

Member of the Internal Audit Committee

Member of the Human Resource Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Member of the Board of Director

Education

® Bachelor of Science, The University of Hong Kong, Hong Kong.

Working Experience

= Director, Investment Sales Division, Chief Group Ltd (current).

® Director and Responsible Officer, Chief Securities Limited (current).
® Director, Chief Financial Services Limited (current).

= Director and Responsible Officer, Chief Great China Assets Management
Limited (current).

..........................................................

Mr. CHAN Kwok Cheung

Independent Non-Executive Director
Chairman, Internal Audit Committee
Member of the Board of Director
Education

® Fellow Member, HKICPA, Hong Kong.
m Fellow Member, ACCA.

Working Experience
m Director, Kreston CAC CPA Limited (current).

e Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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Mr. CHEUNG Ka Wai

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman of the Risk Management Committee

Chairman of the Human Resource Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

Member of the Board of Director

Education

= LL.B (Hons) (HKU) 1991
= P.C.LL. (HKU) 1992
= LL.M. (HKU) 1994

Working Experience

m  Senior Partner of Messrs. Kelvin Cheung & Co.

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. °
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dr. Soeung Morarith
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Education

® Doctor’s degree (Finance), National University of Management, Phnom Penh,
2014.

Soeung, M. (2019), E-commerce Development and Internet Banking
Adoption in Cambodia (with Soeng, R. and Cuyvers, L.), in Chen, L. and
Kimura, F. (eds.): Developing the Digital Economy in ASEAN, Routledge,
England, UK.

Soeung, M (2012), “An Assessment of SERVQUAL's Applicability in Cambodia’s
Banking Sector,” Centre for ASEAN Studies, University of Antwerp, Belgium.

®  MBA (Management), National University of Management, Phnom Penh, 2007.
B BBA (Accounting), National Institute of Management, Phnom Penh, 2004.
®m  Chartered Banker: Chartered Bank Institute, London, UK, 2022.

m Certificate of Achievement: Innovating in the Digital World, London Business
School, London, UK, 2021.

m  Certificate of Management Excellence (CME), Harvard Business School, Boston,

USA, 2019.

® Professional Certificate in Strategy: Building and Sustaining Competitive
Advantage, Harvard Business School, Boston, USA, 2019.

m  Professional Certificate in Disruptive Innovation, Harvard Business School, Boston,
USA, 2018.

m Professional Certificate in Authentic Leader Development, Harvard Business

School, Boston, USA, 2017.

Working Experience
m Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.(current)
®  General Manager, Chief (Cambodia) Specialized Bank Plc.

m Representative of Specialized Banks, serving on the Executive Council of the
Association of Banks in Cambodia (ABC), March 2017 — March 2018.

= Senior Manager, Kookmin (Cambodia) Bank Plc.

® Head of Credit, Kookmin (Cambodia) Bank Plc.

®  Credit Manager (Head Office), Angkor Capital Bank Plc.
®  Credit Officer ( Senior), Cambodian Public Bank.

m Loan Officer, Canadia Bank Plc.

m Junior Credit Officer, Acleda Bank Plc.

® lecturer in Finance and Banking efc., Universities.(current)

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Mr. CHAU Chung Kai Peter
Chairman of the Board of Director

.

AP

-.

Ms. NG Siu Mui Mr. LAM Wai Chuen Mr. YE Haiya Mr. CHAN Kwok Cheung Mr. CHEUNG Ka Wai

Director Director Director Independent Non-Executive Independent Non-Executive
Member of the Risk Management Committee Member of the Risk Management Committee ~ Member of the Risk Management Committee Director Director

Member of the Internal Audit Committee Member of the Internal Audit Committee Member of the Internal Audit Committee Chairman, Internal Audit Committee Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
Member of the Human Resource Nomination and  Member of the Human Resource Nomination ~ Member of the Human Resource Nomination Member of the Board of Director Chairman of the Human Resource Nomination
Remuneration Committee and Remuneration Committee and Remuneration Committee and Remuneration Committee

Member of the Board of Director Member of the Board of Director Member of the Board of Director Member of the Board of Director

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. °



Grow with us today

ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

Executive Management

Oknha Dr. Soeung Morarith
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shum Kwong Po
Deputy General Manager

Mr. Mam Chandara
Senior Manager

Mr. Ty Sochetra

Senior Manager

Mrs. Sim Sarem
Head of Relationship

Mr. Van Tola
Head of HR

Mr. Muniswamy Kishore Kuma
Head of IT

Mr. Ngov Bunthan
Head of Credit

Mr. Van Seiha
Head of Operations and
Credit Control/Review

Mrs. Sim Ratanak Sophea
Risk and Compliance
Manager

Ms. Tauch Soksofia
Internal Audit
Manager

Mr. Phan Phoab Kosal
Senior Admin and
Digital Marketing Manager

e Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.

Mr. Sok Raksmey
Accounting
Manager

Mr. Chhit Vannrachanaroth  Mrs. Ngim Theary
Senior Branch Branch
Manager Manager

Mr. Sok Samnang
Senior Branch
Manager
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

SIS, (m: Q) 8.0
CHIEF {CAMBOD!A] COMMERC#AL BANK PLC.

j ° CHIEF BANK

wn

WETUETIIASIY] WSt (e

Bank Name Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Ple.

Date of Establishment  5th December 2013

Registration No 00005793

Head Office Phnom Penh City Center, No. C-01, St. R11 Corner $t.70, Phum 1, Sangkat Sras Chork
Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia

As of December 31, 2018

Paid-Up Capital US$75 Million

Number of Employees 168

No of Shares Held Percentage of Total
Name (Shares) OutStanding Shares (%)
Principal Shareholders  Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 100%

Auditor KPMG Cambodia Ltd

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @



PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

To satisty clients’ growing needs, Chief
(Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc has actively
been working on
further refinements
of our existing
products and
delivering the
comprehensive
Commercial banking products,
with attractive and innovative
features which are best suited for
the personal banking, farming,
small businesses and corporate
banking customers and deposits
various with beautiful interest rate
and so on. We have delivered
our differentiated network, affluent
businesses, kept optimizing returns—
profits in the current competitive
market and kept investing in what we
expect to be transformational digital
initiatives that are now live such
as our first digital micro-lending
app in Cambodia, comprehensive
mobile banking app, putting
Bakong service online so on and
are on the right track to win
business across our footprint.

@ Chief (Caml
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INTEREST !
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Saving Account

Current Account Saving Prestige

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. G



PERSONAL LOANS AND ADVANCES

Housing Loan

Car Loan

Unsecured Loan

@ Chief (Cambodia) Co
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INTRODUCTION OF CHIEF GROUP

Mr. Chau Chung Kai Peter is the
Chairman of Chief Group, which
was established in 1979 in Hong
Kong. Over the decades, Chief Group
has evolved into a comprehensive
financial institution with diversified
products and services. We are
one of the leaders in Hong Kong's

brokerage industry, proudly holding

the biggest branch service network.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

OUR MISSION

We are committed to serving our customers with integrity and quality performance. This is embodied in the corporate
philosophy, “The Chief Way”, a unique wealth enriching management approach.“The Chief Way” guides our
business ideology of trust and client and partnership sincerity. We seek to prosper together with our clients and
partners.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

OUR PHILOSOPHY

Having rooted firm foundation in Hong Kong, we expand our horizons in Asia-Pacific region. Located at the heart of
Indo-China, fast-developing Cambodia is the first hub of our service network in Southeast Asia. We offer expertise to
our clients and share achievements with our local staff of Cambodia.

As service excellence always our primary quest, we have given top priority to keep enhancing service through staff
training, technology integration and product diversification. We aspire to be the paragon in finance industry.

e Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.



Annual Report 2022

INTRODUCTION OF CHIEF (CAMBODIA) COMMERCIAL BANK PLC.

Given the Bank’s change from
being a specialized bank to a
full-pledged commercial bank
in June 2018, the business
concept and model of the
bank has been transformed
as our objective is to fast-
track expansion plans with

minimal capital expenditure,

thus maximizing social impact

delivery.

A digital banking agenda
is one of the high priorities for Chief Bank; we are accelerating the scaling up of the
bank’s product and service distributions through digital channels. These digital channels
include websites, digital apps, e-wallets and electronic marketplaces. While the bank
is investing heavily in digital transformation, we are thinking differently, with our new
product development to provide greater convenience to our customers and ensure
competitive advantage.

One of our flagship developments is our digital micro-lending app namely Chief Easy,
which is currently being launched and has gained popularity and more consumers’
data. Customers can assess their eligibility for a loan through the digital banking
system and be able to apply for a loan from the bank digitally. As part of our ethical
drive to help the Kingdom’s unbanked and underbanked, this offers the best terms and
conditions in Cambodia. For example, there is no lock-in period or penalties for early
settlement allowing greater financial freedom.

We consider our customers to be long-term partners and pride ourselves on being
flexible, able to provide more options and alternatives. Chief has collaborated
with Wing with a digital partnership across the country to give customers greater
convenience when repaying their loans.

Chief Bank is also part of the National Bank of Cambodia’s Bakong payment
system, which also offers alternative options for transactions such as deposits and
withdrawals, as well as sending and receiving money via e-wallets.

We have been actively working to further refine our existing products and services
and roll out new products and services to satisty our clients’ growing needs.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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INTRODUCTION OF CHIEF (CAMBODIA) COMMERCIAL BANK PLC.

OUR VISION

We are committed to fulfilling customers’ needs and help them succeed financially.

© © © 0 0 0 0 0000000 00000000000 0000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000 0000000000000 00 00 O

OUR MISSION

*  Become a full-fledged and most respected bank, having the largest branch networks.

e Be the “Bank of First Choice” by offering enjoyable experiences.

*  Be the most innovative and efficient foreign bank with a view to guaranteeing and enhancing service excellence.
*  Ensure good corporate governance and compliance in everything we perform.

© © ¢ 0 0 0 000 00000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000000 000000000 0000000000000 000 00 o

OUR GOAL

Our goal is to build broader, deeper and more enduring relationships with our customers, assisting customers at every
step on their journeys to wealth, and to deliver long-term value for our shareholders.

© © ¢ 0 0 0 000 00000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000000 000000000 0000000000000 000 00 o

OUR PHILOSOPHY

*  Maintain highest degree of corporate integrity and professionalism
*  Be one step ahead of others via product innovation and creativity
*  Engage and serve customers pro-actively and whole-heartedly

*  Assume proactive corporate social responsibilities

© © ¢ 0 0 0 000 00000 0000000000000 0000000000 0000000000000 000000000 000000000 0000000000000 000 00 o
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CORPORATE CULTURE

By building good team spirit among our staff, we encourage staff
cultivating passion and vision towards their work. They are the key
factors to their success in goal achievement and development of strong
bonds to their jobs. On the other hand, we also emphasize on high
level of professional ethics. Integrity, prudence and transparency are
the core principles of our corporate cultures.

Technical sharing and training sessions are organized for all staff
members of Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc on a regular
basis. They are conducted to enhance the quality and efficiency
of our service. Our staff team are keen to keep stepping forward
with times.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

e — ™\ kL \We aim to provide superior
F CHIEF [CAMBODIA | COMMERCIAL BANK PIC. . .

service quality and enhance
customer satisfaction. ¥y

Customer Satisfaction

We aim to provide superior service quality and enhance customer satisfaction. Superior service quality can further
build up customer loyalty, bringing opportunities for cross-selling and words-of-mouth recommendations as well.
Goodwill of an enterprise is originated from sustaining high-level satisfaction from customers.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc emphasizes on business integrity and we work hard with our clients , our
employees and our society for a better future ahead. Through professional and ethical service, we build mutual trust
and long-term partnership with our customers.

We have dedicated professionals allotted for each and every customers to handle the commercial banking
transactions at Chief. Whatever information provided by the Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc was up to the
mark and all customers’ doubts were clarified. Another best part about Chiet (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc is our
constant follow up to our customers’ requests for their needs and wants. Also, we regularly seek customer feedback to
understand product and service development opportunities and to alert us to potential improvements. We have various
approaches to gather information from customers by phone calls, customer satisfaction surveys and clients’ written
comments. We look into comments one by one and take appropriate action needed to resolve different situations.

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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STRATEGY GOALS

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc is committed to fulfilling
customers’ needs, helping them succeed financially and being the
most innovative, conservative and efficient foreign bank which is
locally incorporated in Cambodia. The Bank renders full supports for
Cambodia’s four pillars of economic growth, including: (1) garment
exports, (2) tourism; (3) agriculture; and (4) real estates.

A- Marketing Strategy

The first priority of Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc’s strategy is to satisfy its existing borrowers by providing
the refined products with competitive pricing, adapted to the evolution of their needs, witnessed by growing customer
bases and the daily increase of our quality loan portfolio ( zero NPL up to now).

The second priority is to promote new clients throughout popular media in order to increase more new clients into
existing current cycles by expanding more branches to potential locations within Phnom Penh, while being committed
to providing reliable, innovative, customer-friendly financial services, using cutting-edge technology and focusing
continuously improvement whilst developing our staff and acquiring necessary expertise to take comparative
advantages from our competitors.

Subsequently, we are planning to expand into new expected potential provinces of Sihanouk ville, Siem Reap,
Kampong Cham, Kampong Speu and Battambang. Within ten years, we hope to expand further, with branch
operations in Kandal, Pursat, Prey Veng and Takeo. It is also our intention to set up a representative office (and
subsequently a branch) in Hong Kong when appropriate to better support the Bank’s international business.

B- Target Market Identified

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc foresees a positive economic and social environment to expand its activities
in the next three years. The bank has developed a formal capital management framework with a clearly defined
objectives for maintaining an appropriate level of capital adequacy. This ensures sufficient leeway for future business
expansion.

The Bank has identified locations as the most potential to be expanded from 2017 where the financial supply is lower
and demand is higher.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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STRATEGY GOALS

C- Market Size and Trends

Growth of market demand of Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc keeps increasing, evidenced by the daily increases
in quality loan portfolio of the bank since establishment up to now. Growth in market and developing economies was
projected fo increase, supported by stronger domestic demand, as well as a recovery in external demand fuelled by faster
growth in economies.

Cambodia’s banking sector in light of high domestic investment demand, the sector and other financial institutions such
as microfinance have been handsomely profitable, attracting new entry and leading to a rapid expansion of the sector.
This is reflected in the substantial increase in assets, credits, deposits, demands for bank loans and other bank services.
This success in the sector is undoubtedly attributed to the significant improvements in the Kingdom’s financial and banking
system that has continued to develop and improve steadily over time. This helps build stronger investors’ trust and public
confidence in the banking and related sectors, resulting in the higher demands for financial and other banking services
and related services. Given the trend now evident in those cycles such as credit, deposit etc, growth of market demand of
the Bank services remains sound.

The Bank has planned to build up good relationship with many companies, ranging from self-employed business
to medium business in order to entrust them on the Bank services. By planning so, the Bank expects a number of
businesses would have approached to access for banking services in the expansion of their business. This means that
the market size and trend of the bank will be enlarged from time to time.

D- Competitive Analysis

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc has a professional team consisting of various local expertise in the fields of
banking, accounting, credit management, operation, marketing and human resources, plus top management with
regional background of Asia-Pacific, such as Hong Kong, Mainland China, Cambodia efc. This empowers us to provide
quality service to meet the most localized needs of people in Cambodia yet with broader horizons in the Bank's future
development.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Ple. intends to develop a fullservice commercial bank with the following business areas:

Farming and Small Business
Corporate Banking

Personal Banking

Treasury

Chiet (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. will work closely with the National Bank of Cambodia and both the locally
incorporated commercial banks and the foreign bank branches to maintain a significant role in Cambodia banking sector.
We will also work closely to support the legally existing organizations/companies which are involved in rural credit
activities.

The Board of Directors and Management team of Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. are sophisticated professional with
passions. The management team is extremely familiar with Commercial Banks, Specialized Banks, Rural Specialized Banks,
Credit Cooperatives, microfinance companies and has affirmed understanding of the unique characteristics of each financial
services business model as well as the demands and requirements of the respective customer groups.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. operates within a robust credit approval, monitoring system and risk management
system to ensure the financial strength and stability of the Bank’s operations. The Bank adopts a five category loan
monitoring system, with risk-based interest rate pricing to ensure proper risk management.

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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BUSINESS EXPANSION

I \ Cambodia
In view of great favorable e
business climate, such as the Penh

°
favorable business, economic

growth, stable political environment
and great potential and so on, Chief
Bank will open branches in the following

years in Phnom Penh, in order to strengthen the local business of Chief
(Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc and to reap the benefits from the expansion
of Cambodian economy and growing demand for banking services.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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BRANCH NETWORK

There are tremendous business potentials
for opening branches in Phnom Penh,
expected to enlarge market shares and
reap the banking business potentials
from our new expansion plan such as at
Samdach Hun Sen Blvd (60-meter) so on,
where demands would be undoubtedly
high. To this end, we need to build
Chief's brand name awareness, and to

gain reliable network establishment in order to substantiate Chief Bank's
development and differentiate from competitors.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
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Head Office

No.C-01, St.R11 Corner $t.70, Phum 1, Sangkat
Srah Chak, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh.

Tel . 855-23-900 878

Fax . 855-23-900 858

Email : info@chiefbank.com.kh
Website :  www.chiefbank.com.kh

Phsar Olympic Branch

N°20, 21 &21C, Street 274, Sangkat Veal
Vong, Khan Prampir Meakakra, Phnom Penh.

Chbar Ampov Branch
Building NH Il 0046, National Road
No.1, Deum Slaeng Village, Sangkat
Chbar Ampov Ti Pir, Khan Chbar
Ampov, Phnom Penh.

Tel : 855-23-230 488
Fax : 855-23-230 477

Preah Norodom Branch

N° 32, Preah Norodom Blvd (Street N° 41)
corner Street N° 136, Phum 10, Sangkat Phsar

Tel : 855-23-212 878 Kandal Ti Pir, Khan Doun Penh, Phnom Penh.
Fax : 855-23-212 879 Tel : 855-23-900 879
Fax : 855-23-900 859
( AEON MEAN CHEY BRANCH (5% Branch)
Openin
(Gipaieily s
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Headquarter (HQ) of Chief Balnk will be soon re-located to Chief Tower, where is
well-situated along Preah Monivong Blvd (93) corner St. , Sangkat Boeung Keng Kang |,
Khan Chamkar Mon, Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

Our new HO will be one of the commercial, busy and strategic areas.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 AND 31 DECEMBER 2021

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Statement of changes in equity
Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bank Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.

Registration No 00005793

Phnom Penh City Center, No. C-01, St. R11 Corner $t.70
Phum 1, Sangkat Sras Chork

Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh

Kingdom of Cambodia

Registered Office

Shareholder Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited
Board of Directors Mr. Chau Chung Kai Peter Chairman

Mr. Lam Wai Chuen Director

Ms. Ng Siu Mui Director

Mr. Ye Haiya Director

Mr. Chan Kwok Cheung Independent Director

Mr. Cheung Ka Wai Independent Director
Management team  Oknha Dr. Soeung Morarith Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shum Kwong Po Deputy General Manager
Auditor KPMG Cambodia Ltd
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors has pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of Chief
(Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. (“the Bank”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of commercial banking and related financial services in the
Kingdom of Cambodia.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

2022 2021
us$ KHR’000 (Note 5) us$ KHR’000 (Note 5)
Profit before income tax 1,977,233 8,080,952 1,368,125 5,565,534
Income tax expense (491,059) (2,006,958) (361,434) (1,470,315)
Net profit for the year 1,486,174 6,073,994 1,006,691 4,095,219

DIVIDENDS

There were no dividends declared or paid and the Directors do not recommend any dividend to be paid for the financial year.
SHARE CAPITAL

There was no change in share capital or shareholding structure during the financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no other movements to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year other than those disclosed
in the financial statements.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Before the financial statements of the Bank were prepared, the Board of Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain
that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of any bad loans and advances and the making of allowance
for doubtful loans and advances, and satisfied themselves that all known bad loans and advances had been written off
and adequate allowance had been made for doubtful loans and advances.

At the date of this report, the Board of Directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would render the amount
written off for bad loans and advances, or the amount of allowance for doubtful on loans and advances in the financial
statements of the Bank, inadequate to any material extent.

ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Bank were prepared, the Board of Directors took reasonable steps to ensure that any assets,
other than loans and advances, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business at their value as shown in
the accounting records of the Bank had been written down to an amount which they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report, the Board of Directors is not aware of any circumstances, which would render the values
attributed to the assets in the financial statements of the Bank misleading.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the Board of Directors is not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render
adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets and liabilities in the financial statements of the Bank misleading
or inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(a) any charge on the assets of the Bank which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures the
liabilities of any other person, or

(b) any contingent liability in respect of the Bank that has arisen since the end of the financial year other than in the
ordinary course of banking business.

No contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within the
period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, will or may
substantially affect the ability of the Bank to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the Board of Directors is not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt with in this report
or the financial statements of the Bank, which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading in any
material respects.

ITEMS OF UNUSUAL NATURE

The financial performance of the Bank for the financial year were not, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, materially
affected by any items, transactions or events of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, to affect substantially the results of the
operations of the Bank for the current period in which this report is made.

EVENTS SINCE THE REPORTING DATE

At the dates of this report, there have been no other significant events occurring affer the reporting date which would
require adjustments or disclosures other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors who served during the year and at the date of this report are:

Mr. Chau Chung Kai Peter Chairman

Mr. Lam Wai Chuen Director

Ms. Ng Siu Mui Director

Mr. Ye Haiya Director

Mr. Chan Kwok Cheung Independent Director
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai Independent Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS” INTERESTS

Mr. Chau Chung Kai Peter is shareholder of the Chief Cambodia Holding Ltd., a company incorporated in British Virgin
Islands which is the ultimate holding company of the Bank. None of the other Directors held or dealt directly in the
shares of the Bank during the financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS” BENEFITS

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements existed to which the Bank is a party with the object of
enabling Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or
any other body corporate.

During the financial year, no Director of the Bank has received or become entitled to receive any benefit (other than a
benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the Directors as disclosed
in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Bank or a related corporation with a firm of which the
Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest other than as disclosed

in the financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors are responsible for ascertaining that the financial statements as set out on page 9 to 98 are
properly drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December
2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing these financial statements,
the Board of Directors is required to:

()  adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates
and then apply them consistently;

(i) comply with Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”) or, if there have been any
departures in the interest of true and fair presentation, ensure that these have been appropriately disclosed,
explained and quantified in the financial statements;

(iii)  oversee the Bank's financial reporting process and maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system
of internal controls;

(iv)  assess the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank
or fo cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so; and

(v)  control and direct the Bank effectively in all material decisions affecting the operations and performance and
ascertain that such have been properly reflected in the financial statements.

The Board of Directors confirms that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We hereby approve the accompanying financial statements which, in our opinion, present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended, in accordance with Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”).

- }
Signed on behalf of the Bodrd of Directors in accordance with a resolution of Board of Directors,

Mr. Chau Chung Kai Peter
Chairman

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
Date: 31 March 2023
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF CHIEF (CAMBODIA) COMMERCIAL BANK PLC.

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. (“the Bank”), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information as set out on pages 41 to 107 (hereafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”).

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian International Standards on Auditing (“CISAs”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Cambodia, and we have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Report of the Directors on pages 35 to 38, and the annual report, which is expected to be made available to us after
the date of the auditors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

RESPONGSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditors’ report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance CIFRSs,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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AUDITORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CISAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Bank's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

For KPMG Cambodia Lid

Yim Lundy

Direcfor

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
31 March 2023

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.



Annual Report 2022

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2022

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Note us$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

ASSETS
Cash on hand 6 3,180,319 13,093,373 3,040,031 12,385,086
Balances with the NBC 7 39,737,554 163,599,510 38,146,231 155,407,745
Balances with other banks — net 8 65,393 269,223 67,732 275,940
Loans and advances — net 9 164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594
Other assets 10 691,789 2,848,095 1,573,575 6,410,745
Property and equipment 11 9,148,627 37,664,897 5,327,847 21,705,649
Right-of-use assets 12 1,372,877 5,652,135 1,495,962 6,094,549
Intangible assets 13 847,174 3,487,815 979,224 3,989,359
Deferred tax assets — net 14B 339,721 1,398,631 181,731 740,372
TOTAL ASSETS 220,327,937 907,090,117 198,586,411 809,041,039
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 15 136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308
Subordinated debt 16 1,202,262 4,949,713 1,603,156 6,531,258
Lease liabilities 17 1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767
Current income tax liability 14A 494,890 2,037,462 265,663 1,082,311
Other liabilities 18 112,051 461,315 191,154 778,761
TOTAL LIABILITIES 139,810,925 575,601,579 119,555,573 487,069,405
EQUITY
Share capital 19A 75,000,000 300,000,000 75,000,000 300,000,000
Regulotory reserves 198 1,766,367 7,167,888 1,490,227 6,039,304
Retained earnings 3,750,645 15,246,911 2,540,611 10,301,501
Currency translation reserves 9,073,739 5,630,829
TOTAL EQUITY 80,517,012 331,488,538 79,030,838 321,971,634
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 220,327,937 907,090,117 198,586,411 809,041,039

The accompanying notes form an

integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note uss$ KHR"000 Us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

Interest income 21 15,317,297 62,601,793 12,071,025 49,104,930
Interest expense 21 (7,112971)  (29,070,712) _ (5,122,731)  (20,839,270)
Net interest income 21 8,204,326 33,531,081 6,948,294 28,265,660
Fee and commission income 22 10,556 43,142 4,965 20,198
Fee and commission expense 22 (16,595) (67,824) (5,883) (23,932)
Net fee and commission expense 22 (6,039) (24,682) (918) (3,734)
Other (loss)/income 23 96,782 395,548 (95,483) (388,425)
Net impairment (losses)/gain on financial instruments 24 (101,885) (416,404) 59,273 241,123
Personnel expenses 25 (2,494,465)  (10,194,878)  (2,336,388) (9,504,426)
Depreciation and amortisation 26 (1,441,366) (5,890,863) (1,314,678) (5,348,110)
Other operating expenses 27 (2,280,120)  (9,318,850)  (1,891,975) (7,696,554
Profit before income tax 1,977,233 8,080,952 1,368,125 5,565,534
Income tax expense 14C (491,059)  (2,006,958) (361,434)  (1,470,315)
Net profit for the year 1,486,174 6,073,994 1,006,691 4,095,219
Other comprehensive income

ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Currency translation differences 3,442,910 2,268,740
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,486,174 9,516,904 1,006,691 6,363,959

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.




Annual Report 2022

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Regulatory Retained Currency
Share capital reserves earnings translation reserves Total

us$ KHR'000 US$  KHR'000 us$ KHR'000 KHR'000 us$ KHR'000

At T January 2021 75,000,000 300,000,000 888,756 3,588911 2,135,391 8,656,675 - 3,362,089 78,024,147 315,607,675

Transactions recognised
directly in equity
Transfers from retained

earnings fo regulatory
reserves (Note 19B) - - 601,471 2,450,393 (601,471) (2,450,393)

Total comprehensive income

Net profit for the year - - - - 1,006,691 4,095,219 - - 1,006,691 4,095,219
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - 2,268,740 = 2,268,740

1,006,691 4,095,219 - 2,268,740 1,006,691  6,363959
At 31 December 2021 75,000,000 300,000,000 1,490,227 6,039,304 2,540,611 10,301,501 - 5,630,829 79,030,838 321,971,634
At 1 January 2022 75,000,000 300,000,000 1,490,227 6,039,304 2,540,611 10,301,501 - 5,630,829 79,030,838 321,971,634

Transactions recognised
directly in equity
Transfers from retained
earnings to regulatory
reserves (Note 19B) - - 276,140 1,128,584 (276,140) (1,128,584)

Total comprehensive income

Net profit for the year - - . . 1,486,174 6,073,994 . - 1,486,174 6,073994
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - 3,442910 - 3,442910

1,486,174 6,073,994 - 3,442910 1,486,174  9,516904
At 31 December 2022 75,000,000 300,000,000 1,766,367 7,167,888 3,750,645 15,246911 - 9,073,739 80,517,012 331,488,538

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note us$ KHR’000 uss KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year 1,486,174 6,073,994 1,006,691 4,095,219
Adjustments for:
Net interest income 21 (8,204,326) (33,531,081)  (6,948,294)  (28,265,660)
Depreciation and amortisation 26 1,441,366 5,890,863 1,314,678 5,348,110
Income tax expense 14 491,059 2,006,958 361,434 1,470,315
Unrealised exchange loss/(gain) 49,662 202,969 (118,700) (482,872)
Net impairment losses on financial instruments 24 (101,885) (416,404) (59,273) (241,123)

(4,837950) (19,772,701)  (4,443,464)  (18,076,011)
Changes in:
Loans and advances 9 (15,621,388) (63,844,613  (53,714,946) (218,512,400)
Statutory deposit and placement with other banks (1,403,295)  (5,735,267) (2,079,182) (8,458,112)
Other assets 10 281,786 1,151,659 (96,349) (391,948)
Deposits from customers 15 19,841,500 81,092,211 53,314,208 216,882,198
Other liabilities 18 (79,103) (323,294) 55,906 227,426
Cash used in operations (1,818,450) (7,432,005) (6,963,827) (28,328,847)
Interest received 13,820,351 56,483,775 11,854,018 48,222,145
Interest paid (6,328,416) (25,864,236)  (4,377,341)  (17,807,023)
Income tax paid 14A (419,822)  (1,715,813) (330,853) (1,345,910)
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,253,663 21,471,721 181,997 740,365
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment 11 (3977,606) (16,256,476)  (3,335,556)  (13,569,042)
Acquisition of intangible assets 13 (123,365) (504,193) (570,788) (2,321,966)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,100,971)  (16,760,669) (3,906,344)  (15,891,008)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment for subordinated debt (400,000)  (1,634,800) (400,000) (1,627,200)
Principal repayments of lease liabilities 17 (426,867)  (1,744,605) (408,522) (1,661,867)
Net cash used in financing activities (826,867) (3,379,405) (808,522) (3,289,067)
Net increase/(decrease)in cash and cash equivalents 325,825 1,331,647 (4,532,869) (18,439,710)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 27,076,872 110,311,177 31,609,741 127,861,402
Currency translation differences 1,174,079 889,485
Cash and cash equivalents 31 December 20 27,402,697 112,816,903 27,076,872 110,311,177

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2022

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

1.

N

REPORTING ENTITY

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. (the “Bank”) is incorporated and registered in the Kingdom of Cambodia.
The Bank registered with the Ministry of Commerce as a Public Limited Company under the Registration No.
00005793 (former Co. 2255 E/2013), dated 12 May 2017. On 5 December 2013, the Bank

received its specialised bank license from the National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC”).

On 7 June 2018, the Bank obtained its commercial bank license from the NBC to operate as a commercial bank.
On 27 June 2018, the Bank obtained the approval from the Ministry of Commerce (“MoC") on the changes in the
Bank’s name from Chief (Cambodia) Specialised Bank Plc. to Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. The Bank
is wholly owned by Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands.
The ultimate holding company of the Bank is Chief Cambodia Holdings Ltd., a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands.

The Bank's principal activities are provision of commercial banking and related financial services in the Kingdom

of Cambodia.

The Bank's registered office is located at Phnom Penh City Centre No. C-01, St. R11 Corner St. 70, Phum 1,
Sangkat Sras Chork, Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia.

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank had 168 employees (31 December 2021: 167 employees).

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The financial statements of the Bank (hereafter referred to as “financial statements”) have been prepared in
accordance with Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (“CIFRSs”).

Details of the Bank’s accounting policies are included in Note 31.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023.

BASIS OF AGGREGATION

The Bank’s financial statements comprise the financial statements of the head office and its branches. All inter-
branch balances and transactions have been eliminated.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The Bank transacts its business and maintains its accounting records in two currencies, Khmer Riel (“KHR") and
United States Dollars (“US$”). Management has determined the US$ to be the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency as it reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances of the Bank.

These financial statements are presented in US$, which is the Bank’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest dollar, except when otherwise indicated.

USE OF JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In preparing these financial statements, mono?ement has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of the Bank’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. USE OF JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

« Note 31C(ii): classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the assets are held
and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are SPPI on the principal amount outstanding.

«  Note 31C(vii): establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial assets have increased
significantly since initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating forward-looking information into
measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncerfainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in
the following notes:

o Note 31C(vii): impairment of financial instruments: determination of inputs into the ECL measurement model, including
key assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash flows and incorporation of forward-looking information.
o Note 31C(vi): determination of the fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs.

5. TRANSLATION OF UNITED STATES DOLLARS INTO KHMER RIEL
The financial statements are expressed in United States Dollar which is the Bank’s functional currency. The
translations of United States Dollars amounts into Khmer Riel (“KHR”) meets the presentation requirements
pursuant to Law on Accounting and Auditing and has been done in compliance with CIAS 21 - The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate as at the reporting date. Share capital and other equity
accounts are translated at the historical rate. The statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and cash flows are translated into KHR using the average rate for the year, which has been deemed to
approximate the exchange rate at the date of transaction as exchange rates have not fluctuated significantly
during the period. Exchange differences arising from the translation are recognised as “Currency Translation
Differences” in the other comprehensive income.

The Bank uses the following exchange rates:

Closing rate Average rate

31 December 2022 USS$1 = KHR 4,117 KHR 4,087
31 December 2021 US$1

KHR 4,074 KHR 4,068

These convenience translations should not be construed as representations that the United States Dollars amounts have
been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into Khmer Riels at this or any other rafe of exchange.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH ON HAND

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Cash on hand 2,349,185 9,671,595 2,300,613 9,372,697
Cash in ATM 831,134 3,421,778 739,418 3,012,389

3,180,319 13,093,373 3,040,031 12,385,086

BALANCES WITH THE NBC

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR'000 us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Statutory deposits
Reserve requirements A 7980,783 32,856,885 6,578,463 26,800,658
Capital guarantee deposits B 7,500,000 30,877,500 7,500,083 30,555,338
15,480,783 63,734,385 14,078,546 57,355,996
Current accounts 24,155,713 99,449,070 23,967,685 97,644,349
Negotiable Certificate of Deposit (NCD) 101,058 416,055 100,000 407,400

39,737,554 163,599,510 38,146,231 155,407,745

RESERVE REQUIREMENTS

Under the Central Bank’s Prakas No. B7-020-230 dated 18 March 2020, banks are required to maintain reserve
requirement with the Central Bank in the form of compulsory deposits, computed at 7% of customer deposits and
borrowings in KHR and in foreign currencies.

Subsequently, on 9 January 2023, the NBC announced the increase of the Reserve Requirements Rate (“RRR”) to 9%
and 12.5% for foreign currencies deposits and borrowings, which is effective from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023, and from 1 January 2024 onward, respectively. However, the Reserve Requirement Rate for local currency
deposits and borrowings shall maintain the same at 7%.

CAPITAL GUARANTEE DEPOSITS

Under the NBC's Prakas No. B7-01-136 dated 15 October 2001, the Bank is required to maintain a statutory deposit
10% of its capital. This deposit is not available for use in the Bank’s day-to-day operations but is refundable should
the Bank voluntarily cease its operations in Cambodia.The capital guarantee deposits earn annual interest rate at
0.65% (2021: 0.06%) per annum during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS - NET

Balances with other banks are measured at amortised cost because these instruments meet the SPPI criterion and are
held to collect the contractual cash flows.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR'000 Us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Balances with other banks at amortised cost
Less than 3 months 66,665 274,460 69,156 281,742
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,272) (5,237) (1,424) (5,802)
65,393 269,223 67,732 275,940

Movements in impairment loss allowance on balances with other banks during the year were as follows:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Uss$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 1,424 5,802 31,854 128,849
Recognised in profit or loss (152) (621) (30,427) (123,777)
Currency translation differences - 56 - 730
At 31 December 1,272 5,237 1,424 5,802

The balances with other banks at amoritsed cost are analysed as follows:

Impairment loss

Gross carrying amount Carrying amounts

allowance
Us$ us $ Us$ KHR’000
(Note 5)
31 December 2022
Current accounts 55,469 (1,254) 54,215 223,203
Savings accounts 11,196 (18) 11,178 46,020
66,665 (1,272) 65,393 269,223
31 December 2021
Current accounts 62,359 (1,285) 61,074 248,815
Savings accounts 6,797 (139) 6,658 27,125
69,156 (1,424) 67,732 275,940
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS - NET (continued)

The balances with other banks at amoritsed cost are analysed as follows: (continued)

2022 2021
By interest rate (per annum) 0.5% - 2% 0.25% - 1%
LOANS AND ADVANCES - NET
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR’000 US$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Loans and advances at amortised cost 165,065,124 679,573,117 147,792,680 602,107,378
Less: Impairment loss allowance (120,641) (496,679) (18,602) (75,784)
164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

Movements in impairment loss allowance on loans and advances during the year were as follows:

2022 2021
uss$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 18,602 75,784 47,448 191,927
Recognised in profit or loss 102,039 417,033 (28,846) (117,346)
Currency translation differences - 3,862 - 1,203
At 31 December 120,641 496,679 18,602 75,784

Loans and advances to customers are analysed as follows:

Gross carrying Impairment loss Carrying amounts

amounts allowance
Us$ us$ Us$ KHR’000
(Note 5)
31 December 2022
Individual 156,976,846 (79,180) 156,897,666 645,947,692
Corporate 8,088,278 (41,461) 8,046,817 33,128,746
165,065,124 (120,641) 164,944,483 679,076,438
31 December 2021
Individual 145,051,577 (10,115) 145,041,462 590,898,916
Corporate 2,741,103 (8,487) 2,732,616 11,132,678
147,792,680 (18,602) 147,774,078 602,031,594

For additional analysis of gross amount of Loans and advances, refer to Note 29A.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. OTHER ASSETS

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR'000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Prepayments 322,403 1,327,333 298,006 1,214,078
Deposits and advances 275,958 1,136,119 566,043 2,306,059
Office supplies 85,333 351,316 80,236 326,881
Other receivables 8,095 33,327 29,290 119,327
Deposit with Chief Tower - - 600,000 2,444,400

691,789 2,848,095 1,573,575 6,410,745

11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Furniture
improve- Motor Computer and  Construction
Buildings ment Vehicles equipment Equipment fixtures in progress Total
KHR’000
2022 (Note 5)
Cost
At T January 880,000 1,649,514 333,185 1,649920 608,472 77946 2,400,000 7,599,037 30,958,477
Additions - 2,134 84,000 231,565 9,279 - 3,650,628 3,977,606 16,256,476
Transfer from refundable
deposit - - - - - - 600,000 600,000 2,452,200
Currency translation
differences - - - - - - - - 464,086
At 31 December 880,000 1,651,648 417,185 1,881,485 617751 77946 6,650,628 12,176,643 50,131,239

Less: Accumulated
depreciation

At 1 January 113,843 1,040,839 250,117 614,710 222,288 29,393 - 2,271,190 9,252,828
Depreciation for the year 43970 241,314 51,043 284,740 119,615 16,144 - 756,826 3,093,148
Currency translation )

differences - - - - - - - 120,366
At 31 December 157,813 1,282,153 301,160 899,450 341903 45,537 - 3,028,016 12,466,342

Carrying amounts

At 31 December 722,187 369,495 116,025 982,035 275,848 32,409 6,650,628 9,148,627 37,664,897
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Leasehold Furniture Construction
improve- Motor Computer and in
Buildings ment Vehicles equipment Equipment fixtures  progress Total

2021 us$ us$ uss$ us$ us$ us$ uss$ KHR’000
Cost
At 1 January 880,000 1,610,126 324,745 902,852 474,268 74,481 - 4,266,472 17,257,880
Additions - 39,388 8,440 747,068 134,204 6,456 2,400,000 3,335,556 13,569,042
Write-off - - - - - (2991) - (2991)  (12,167)
Currency translation

differences - - - - - - = - 143,722
At 31 December 880,000 1,649,514 333,185  1,649920 608,472 77946 2,400,000 7,599,037 30,958,477
Less: Accumulated

depreciation
At 1 Jcnuary 69,873 716,659 194,156 443912 125,608 16,561 - 1,566,769 6,337,581
Depreciation for the

year 43,970 324,180 55,961 170,798 96,680 15,823 - 707,412 2,877,752
Write-off - - - - - (2991) - (2991)  (12,167)
Currency translation

differences . . - . - - - - 49,662
At 31 December 113,843 1,040,839250,117 614,710 222,288 29,393 -2,271,190 9,252,828
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 766,157 608,675 83,068 1,035,210 386,184 48,553 2,400,000 5,327,847 21,705,649

12. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000

Buildings (Note 5) (Note 5)
Cost
At 1 January 2,681,335 10,923,759 2,681,335 10,846,000
Extension 306,040 1,250,785
Currency translation differences . 124,479 - 77759
At 31 December 2,987,375 12,299,023 2,681,335 10,923,759
Less: Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 1,185,373 4,829,210 755,641 3,056,568
Amortisation for the year 429,125 1,753,834 429,732 1,748,150
Currency translation differences . 63,844 - 24,492
At 31 December 1,614,498 6,646,888 1,185,373 4,829,210
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 1,372,877 5,652,135 1,495,962 6,094,549

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. Q



Grow with us today

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software and Construction

licenses in progress Total
Us$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000

2022 (Note 5) (Note 5)
Cost
At 1 January 1,334,541 - 1,334,541 5,436,920
Additions 77,598 45,767 123,365 504,193
Currency translation differences - - - 61,086
At 31 December 1,412,139 45,767 1,457,906 6,002,199
Less: Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 355,317 - 355,317 1,447,561
Amortisation for the year 255,415 - 255,415 1,043,881
Currency translation differences - - - 22,942
At 31 December 610,732 - 610,732 2,514,384
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 801,407 45,767 847,174 3,487,815

Software and licenses

us$ KHR’000

2021 (Note 5)
Cost
At 1 January 763,753 3,089,381
Additions 570,788 2,321,966
Currency translation differences - 25,573
At 31 December 1,334,541 5,436,920
Less: Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 177,783 719,132
Amortisation for the year 177,534 722,208
Currency translation differences - 6,221
At 31 December 355,317 1,447,561
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 979,224 3,989,359
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14.

A.

INCOME TAX

Current income tax liability

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022 2021
Uss$ KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 265,663 1,082,311 214,169 866,314

Recognised in profit or loss

Income tax paid

Currency translation differences

At 31 December

649,049 2,652,663 382,347 1,555,388
(419,822) (1,715,813)  (330,853)  (1,345,910)

18,301 - 6,519

494,890 2,037,462 265,663 1,082,311

In accordance with Cambodian Law on Taxation, the Bank has an obligation to pay corporate income tax of either the tax on

income at the rate of 20% of taxable income or the minimum tax at 1% of gross revenues, whichever is higher.

Deferred tax assets — net

The movements of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the years are attributable to:

Impairment
loss
allowance

Property and
equipment

and

asset

assets

intangible Right-of-use Lease

Unrealised Unamortised
exchange  processing
liabilities loss/(gain) fee Total

uss$ KHR'000

(Note 5)

At 1 January 2022 3993 (101,742)  (299,192) 321,196 15,929 241,547 181,731 740,372
Recognised in profit or loss (11,856) 139,080 24,617  (24,165) 9932 20,382 157,990 645,705
Currency translation
differences 12,554
At 31 December 2022 (7,863) 37,338 (274,575) 297,031 25,861 261929 339,721 1,398,631

At T January 2021 7,247 (20,703)  (385,139) 402,900 (7,811) 164,324 160,818 650,509
Recognised in profii or loss (3,254) (81,039) 85,947 (81,704) 23,740 77,223 20913 85,073
Currency translation
differences 4,790
At 31 December 2021 3993 (101,742)  (299,192) 321,196 15,929 241,547 181,731 740,372

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INCOME TAX (continued)

C. Income tax expense
2022 2021
us$ KHR'000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Current income tax expense 649,049 2,652,663 382,347 1,555,388
Deferred tax income (157,990) (645,705) (20,213) (85,073)
Income tax expense 491,059 2,006,958 361,434 1,470,315
The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory tax rate of 20% to the income tax expense shown in profit or loss
is as follows:
2022 2021
us$ KHR’000 % us$ KHR'000 %
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Profit before income tax 1,977,233 8,080,952 1,368,125 5,565,534
Income tax using statutory tax rate at 20% 395,447 1,616,190 20 273,625 1,113,107 20
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 95,612 390,768 4.84 87,809 357,208 6
Income tax expense 491,059 2,006,958  24.84 361,434 1,470,315 26

The calculation of taxable income is subject to the final review and approval of the tax authorities.

15. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.

uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At amortised cost:

Current accounts 1,217,673 5,013,159 2,996,174 12,206,413
Savings accounts 3,536,171 14,558,416 5,998,875 24,439,417
Installment deposits 227,899 938,260 161,653 658,574
Term deposits 131,534,825 541,528,875 106,732,917 434,829,904
136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308

Deposits from customers are analysed as follows:
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15.
A.

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS (continued)

By maturity:

31 December 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
Within 1 month 9,520,144 39,194,432 11,145,708 45,407,614
> 1 to 3 months 14,744,078 60,701,369 14,947,223 60,894,987
> 3 to 12 months 95,589,532 393,542,103 78,664,039 320,477,295
> 11to 5 years 8,867,254 36,506,485 5,811,819 23,677,351
Over 5 years 7,795,560 32,094,321 5,320,830 21,677,061
136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308

By relationship:

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

uss$ KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
Related parties 194,573 801,057 64,210 261,592
Others 136,321,995 561,237,653 115,825,409 471,872,716
136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308

By interest: (per annum)

2022 2021

Current account

Savings account
Installment deposit

Fixed deposit

0.00% to 0.75% 0.00%
0.75% to 4.25% 0.75% to 4.00%

5.50% to 7.00%
1.80% to 8.00%

5.50% to 7.00%
1.50% to 8.00%

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. SUBORDINATED DEBT

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Us$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Principal 1,200,000 4,940,400 1,600,000 6,518,400
Accrual interest 2,262 9,313 3,156 12,858
1,202,262 4,949,713 1,603,156 6,531,258
2022 2021
Us$ KHR'000 Us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January 1,603,156 6,531,258 2,001,817 8,097,350
Interest expense 79,123 323,376 99,123 403,232
Interest paid (80,017) (327,029) (97,784) (397,785)
Repayment on principle (400,000) (1,634,800) (400,000) (1,627,200)
Currency translation differences - 56,908 - 55,661
At 31 December 1,202,262 4,949,713 1,603,156 6,531,258

This represents a long-term and unsecured borrowing from the shareholder with the principal outstanding as at 31 December
2022 of US$1,200,000 (31 December 2021: US$1,600,000). The subordinated debt has the following terms:

Lender Annual Interest rate Start date Maturity Collateral

Shareholder
Chief Financial (Group) Cambodia Limited 5% 22 December 2020 21 December 2025 Unsecured

On 24 December 2020, the Bank obtained an approval from the NBC allowing the subordinated debt to be included in Tier
Il capital for the purpose of Net Worth calculation.

17. LEASE LIABILITIES

2022 2021
us$ KHR'000 us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
At 1 January
Extension 1,605,981 6,542,767 2,014,503 8,148,665
Interest expense 306,040 1,250,785
Interest paid 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291
Principal portion of lease payments (79,809) (326,179) (98,154) (399,291)
Currency translation differences (426,867) (1,744,605) (408,522) (1,661,867)
At 31 December - 65,432 - 55,969
1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
uss$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Maturity analysis:
Within 1 year 480,009 1,976,197 506,684 2,064,231
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 1,108,344 4,563,052 1,108,353 4,515,430
Later than 5 years 70,000 288,190 190,000 774,060
1,658,353 6,827,439 1,805,037 7,353,721
Less: Unwinding interest (173,199) (713,060) (199,056) (810,954)
Total present value of lease liabilities 1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767
Analysed as:
Current 410,864 1,691,527 431,003 1,755,907
Non-current 1,074,290 4,422,852 1,174,978 4,786,860
1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767
A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Interest on lease liabilities 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291
Expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 160,435 655,698 137,091 557,686
240,244 981,877 235,245 956,977
B. Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows:
2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Cash flows from operating activities
Interest on lease liabilities 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291
Expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 160,435 655,699 137,091 557,686
240,244 981,878 235,245 956,977
Cash flows from financing activities
Principal repayments of lease liabilities 426,867 1,744,605 408,522 1,661,867
Total cash outflow for leases 667,111 2,726,483 643,767 2,618,844

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Accrued bonuses and salaries 1,954 8,045 40,320 164,264
Other tax payables 88,612 364,816 58,383 237,852
Others 21,485 88,454 92,451 376,645
112,051 461,315 191,154 778,761

19. SHARE CAPITAL AND REGULATORY RESERVES

Share capital
The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited, a company incorporated under
the law of British Virgin Islands under the Registration No. 1771142 and registered address at Vickhams Cay II, Road
Town, Tortola, VG1110, British Virgin Islands.

The Bank’s registered, authorised and issued share capital is US$75,000,000 (equivalent to KHR300 billion).

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Shareholder Number of shares 9 Amount US$ Number of shares % Amount US$

Chief Financial Group
(Cambodia) Limited 75,000,000 100 75,000,000 75,000,000 100 75,000,000

There were no changes in the shareholders and the shareholding structure of the Bank during the year under audit.

B. REGULATORY RESERVE

Regulatory reserves represented the variance between the impairment loss on financial instruments in accordance with
CIFRS 9 and the regulatory provision in accordance with the National Bank of Cambodia.

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank transferred from retained earnings to regulatory reserves of US$276,140 (2021:
US$601,471).

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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19.

B.

20.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL AND REGULATORY RESERVES(continued)
REGULATORY RESERVE (continued)
Balances with  Loans and  Off-balance
other banks advances sheet items Total
uss uss uss$ uss KHR’000
(Note 5)
31 December 2022
Allowance per NBC 617 1,883,532 4,131 1,888,280 7,774,049
Allowance per CIFRS 9 1,272 120,556 85 121913 501,918
Currency translation differences 104,243
Regulatory reserves (A) (655) 1,762,976 4,046 1,766,367 7,167,888
31 December 2021
Allowance per NBC 692 1,492,326 17,236 1,510,254 6,152,775
Allowance per CIFRS 9 1,425 18,602 20,027 81,594
Currency translation differences 31,877
Reguloiory reserves (B) (733) 1,473,724 17,236 1,490,227 6,039,304
Transfer from retained earnings to regulatory reserves (A - B) 276,140 1,128,584
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
uss KHR'000 uss KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Cash on hand (Note 6) 3,180,319 13,093,373 3,040,031 12,385,086
Balances with the NBC (Note 7) 24,155,713 99,449,070 23,967,685 97,644,349
Balances with other banks — gross (Note 8) 66,665 274,460 69,156 281,742
27,402,697 112,816,903 27,076,872 110,311,177

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and balances with the NBC (current
account only) and other banks with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying
amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair value. Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled

to the related items shown above.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. NET INTEREST INCOME

2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Interest income
Loans and advances 14,623,673 59,766,952 11,218,837 45,638,229
Balances with the NBC 28,654 117,109 3,989 16,227
Balances with other banks 664,970 2,717,732 848,199 3,450,474
15,317,297 62,601,793 12,071,025 49,104,930
Interest expense
Deposits from customers 6,954,039 28,421,157 4,925,454 20,036,747
Subordinated debt 79,123 323,376 99,123 403,232
Lease liabilities 79,809 326,179 98,154 399,291
7,112,971 29,070,712 5,122,731 20,839,270
Net interest income 8,204,326 33,531,081 6,948,294 28,265,660

22. NET FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

2022 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Fee and commission income
Service charges and fees 10,556 43,142 4,965 20,198
Fee and commission expense
Bank charges 16,595 67,824 5,883 23,932
Net fee and commission expense (6,039) (24,682) (918) (3,734)
23.  OTHER (LOSS)/INCOME
2022 2021
uss$ KHR’000 Uss$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Net foreign exchange loss (24,197) (98,893) (100,509) (408,871)
Other income 120,979 494,441 5,026 20,446
96,782 395,548 (95,483) (388,425)

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Balances with other banks 152 621 30,427 123,777
Loans and advances (102,039) (417,033) 28,846 117,346
(101,885) (416,404) 59,273 241,123
25. PERSONNEL EXPENSES
2022 2021
US$ KHR’000 US$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Salaries and bonuses 2,276,495 9,304,035 2,145,560 8,728,138
Seniority payments 99,463 406,505 92,767 377,376
Other personnel expenses 118,507 484,338 98,061 398,912
2,494,465 10,194,878 2,336,388 9,504,426
26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
2022 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Property and equipment 756,826 3,093,148 707,412 2,877,752
Right-of—use assets 429,125 1,753,834 429,732 1,748,150
Intangible assets 255,415 1,043,881 177,534 722,208
1,441,366 5,890,863 1,314,678 5,348,110

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2022 2021

us$ KHR'000 us$ KHR’000

(Note 5) (Note 5)
License fee, patent and other taxes 632,943 2,586,838 575,575 2,341,439
Professional services 542,626 2,217,712 545,697 2,219,895
Marketing and advertising 247418 1,011,197 140,180 570,252
Leases and rental 160,435 655,698 137,091 557,686
Utilities 135,162 552,407 115,166 468,495
Communication 116,374 475,621 129,608 527,245
Office supplies and non-capitalised purchases 59,384 242,702 51,563 209,758
Repairs and maintenance 18,818 76,909 16,231 66,028
Security 14,893 60,868 9,655 39,277
Others 352,067 1,438,898 171,209 696,479
2,280,120 9,318,850 1,891,975 7,696,554

28. RELATED PARTIES

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited, the holding company, incorporated
under the law of British Virgin Islands.

Significant transactions and balances with related parties are as follows:

Relationship Related party

Holding company Entity that has significant ownership and control over the Bank.

Fellow subsidiary/related company Entities that are members of the same group or controlled by the ultimate
shareholder of the Bank.

Key management personnel Persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and

controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly, including any
director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Bank.

A. Key management compensations
2022 2021
uss KHR’000 uss KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Key management compensations 184,747 148,056 148,056 603,180

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

B. Balances with related parties
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Loans and accrual interest income
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 3,612,289 14,871,794
Key Management 390,963 1,609,595 185,598 756,126
4,003,252 16,481,389 185,598 756,126
Deposits and accrual interest payable
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 13,890 57,185
Key management 180,683 743,872 64,210 261,592
194,573 801,057 64,210 261,592
Refundable deposits
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited - - 600,000 2,444,400
Subordinated Debt and accrual interest payable
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 1,202,262 4,949,713 1,603,156 6,531,258
C.  Transactions with related parties
2022 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Interest expense from deposit
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 1,468 6,000 - -
Key management 6,263 25,597 254 1,033
Interest income from loan
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 67,703 276,702 - -
Key management 21,143 86,411 24,683 100,410
License Fee
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 72,000 294,264 72,000 292,896
Repayment of subordinated debt
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 400,000 1,634,800 400,000 1,627,200
Interest expense on subordinated debt
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 79,123 323,376 99,123 403,232
Management fee
Chief Securities Limited 288,000 1,177,056 264,000 1,073,952
Payment for Chief Tower
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 3,960,000 16,184,520 2,640,000 10,739,520

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

C. Transactions with related parties (continued)
2022 2021
Us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

Transfer of refundable deposit for Chief Tower
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 600,000 2,452,200
Rental Expense
Chief Real Estate Development (Cambodia) Limited 180,000 735,660 180,000 732,240
Key management 120,000 490,440 120,000 488,160
Expense paid by/ on behalf of the Bank
Chief Securities Limited 73,177 299,074 314,174 1,278,060
Chief Financial Group (Cambodia) Limited 38,184 156,058

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Bank has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:
o credit risk;
* market risk;
* liquidity risk; and
* capital management
Taking risk is core to the financial business, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business.
The Bank does not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contract and interest rate swaps to manage
its risk exposures.
Categories of financial instruments
The Bank holds the following financial assets and liabilities, which measured at amortised cost, at the end of the reporting periods:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

®

us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)

Financial assets
Cash on hand 3,180,319 13,093,373 3,040,031 12,385,086
Balances with the NBC 39,737,554 163,599,510 38,146,231 155,407,745
Balances with other banks 65,393 269,223 67,732 275,940
Loans and advances 164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594
Other assets 284,053 1,169,446 1,195,333 4,869,787
Total financial assets 208,211,802 857,207,990 190,223,405 774,970,152
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 136,516,568 562,038,710 115,889,619 472,134,308
Subordinated debt 1,202,262 4,949,713 1,603,156 6,531,258
Lease liabilities 1,485,154 6,114,379 1,605,981 6,542,767
Other liabilities 23,439 96,498 132,771 540,909
Total financial liabilities 139,227,423 573,199,300 119,231,527 485,749,242
Net financial assets 68,984,379 284,008,690 70,991,878 289,220,910

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.
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29.

A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk

“Credit risk” is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Bank’s customers, clients or market counterparties fail
to fulfil their contractual obligations to the Bank. Credit risk arises from deposits and placements with NBC and other bank,
loans and advances, other financial assets at amortised cost, and credit commitments. For risk management reporting
purposes, the Bank considers and consolidates all element of credit risk exposure — e.g. individual obligor default risk,
country and sector risk. Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principle losses arising mainly from loans and
advances and loan commitments as a result of default by the borrowers or counterparties through its lending activites.

(i) Credit risk management

« Ensuring that the Bank has appropriate credit risk practices, including an effective system of internal control,
to consistently determine adequate allowances in accordance with the Bank’s stated policies and procedures,
CIFRSs and relevant supervisory guidance.

+ Identifying, assessing and measuring credit risk across the Bank, from an individual instrument to a portfolio level.

« Creating credit policies to protect the Bank against the identified risks including the requirements to obtain
collateral from borrowers, to perform robust ongoing credit assessment of borrowers and to continually monitor
exposures against internal risk limits.

« Limiting concentrations of exposure by type of asset, counterparties, industry, credit rating, geographic location efc.

«  Establishing a robust control framework regarding the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of
credit facilities.

+ Developing and maintaining the Bank’s risk grading to categorise exposures according to the degree of risk
of default. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews.

« Developing and maintaining the Bank’s processes for measuring ECL including monitoring of credit risk,
incorporation of forward-looking information and the method used to measure ECL.

« Ensuring that the Bank has policies and procedures in place to appropriately maintain and validate models
used to assess and measure ECL.

« Establishing a sound credit risk accounting assessment and measurement process that provides it with a
strong basis for common systems, tools and data to assess credit risk and to account for ECL. Providing
advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best practice throughout the Bank in the
management of credit risk.

+ The internal audit function performs regular audits making sure that the established controls and procedures
are adequately designed and implemented.

(ii) Credit quality analysis

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised cost. It also
set out information about the overdue status of Loans and advances in Stage 1, 2 and 3. Unless specifically indicated,
for financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts. The Bank assesses cash on hand and
balance with NBC and other assets have no risk of suffering financial loss and not included in credit quality analysis.

Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc. @
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29.
A. Credit risk (continued)
(i) Credit quality analysis (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

31 December 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
us$ US$ us$ us$ KHR’000
(Note 5)
Balances with other banks:
Normal 66,665 66,665 274,460
Loss allowance (1,272) (1,272) (5,237)
Carrying amounts 65,393 65,393 269,223
Loans and advances:
Normal 160,992,533 160,992,533 662,806,259
Special mention 3,364,252 3,364,252 13,850,625
Sub-standard 598,133 598,133 2,462,514
Doubtful 104,543 104,543 430,404
Loss 5,663 5,663 23,315
160,992,533 3,364,252 708,339 165,065,124 679,573,117
Loss allowance (84,904) (5,365) (30,372) (120,641)  (496,679)
Carrying amounts 160,907,629 3,358,887 677967 164,944,483 679,076,438
31 December 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
us$ us$ UzS$ uss$ KHR’000
(Note 5)
Balances with other banks:
Normal 69,156 69,156 281,742
Loss allowance (1,424) (1,424) (5,802)
Carrying amounts 67,732 67,732 275,940
Loans and advances:
Normal 147,339,117 147,339,117 600,259,563
Special mention 453,251 453,251 1,846,545
Sub-standard - 312 312 1,270
147,339,117 453,251 312 147,792,680 602,107,378
Loss allowance (18,154) (136) (312) (18,602) (75,784)
Carrying amounts 147,320,963 453,115 147,774,078 602,031,594
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
A. Credit risk (continued)
(i) Credit quality analysis (continued)

31 December 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
us$ Us$ us$ us$ KHR'000
(Note 5)
Expected credit loss as at 1 January 2022 18,154 136 312 18,602 75,784
Change in the expected credit loss
- Transfer to stage 1 121 (121)
- Transfer to stage 2 (130) 130
- Transfer to stage 3 (66) . 66 - -
New financial assets originated 290,177 2,346 2,130 294,653 1,204,247
Net remeasurement of loss allowance and
other movements (223,352) 2,874 27,864 (192,614) (787,213)
Currency translation differences - - - - 3,861
Expected credit loss as at 31 December 2022 84,904 5,365 30,372 120,641 496,679

The tables below analyse the movement of the loss allowance during the year for Loans and advances carried at
amortised cost: (continued)

31 December 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
Us$ uss$ uss$ us$ KHR'000
(Note 5)
Expected credit loss as at 1 January 2021 47,448 - - 47,448 191,927
Change in the expected credit loss
- Transfer to stage 1
- Transfer to stage 2
- Transfer to stage 3 - - - - -
New financial assets originated 8,486 136 312 8,934 36,344
Net remeasurement of loss allowance and
other movements (37,780) - - (37,780) (153,689)
Currency translation differences - - - 1,202
Expected credit loss as at 31 December 2021 18,154 136 312 18,602 75,784
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
A. Credit risk (continued)
(i) Credit quality analysis (continued)

The tables below analyse the movement of Loans and advances carried at amortised cost:

31 December 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
uss$ uss$ uss$ Us$ KHR’000
(Note 5)
Gross carrying amounts as at 1 January 2022 147,339,117 453,251 312 147,792,680 602,107,378
Change in gross carrying amounts
- Transfer to stage 1 135,264  (135,264)
- Transfer to stage 2 (2,182,052) 2,182,052 -
- Transfer to stage 3 (706,277) . 706,277 - -
New financial assets originated 60,195,206 1,004,374 1,536 61,201,116 250,128,961
Net movements (43,788,725) (140,161) 214 (43,928,672) (179,536,482)
Currency translation differences - - - : 6,873,260

Gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2022 160,992,533 3,364,252 708,339 165,065,124 679,573,117

31 December 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL Total
Us$ us$ us$ us$ KHR'000
(Note 5)
Gross carrying amounts as at 1 January 2021 93,860,728 - - 93,860,728 382,388,606
Change in gross carrying amount
- Transfer to stage 1
- Transfer to stage 2
- Transfer to stage 3 - - - - -
New financial assets originated 38,070,193 453,251 312 38,523,756 156,714,639
Net movements 15,408,196 - - 15,408,196 62,680,541
Currency translation difference - - - 323,592
Gross carrying amounts as at 31 December 2021 147,339,117 453,251 312 147,792,680 602,107,378
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29.

A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(iii). Amounts arising from ECL

(a) Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment

The Bank recognise loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:
¢ balances with other banks; and
* loans and advances.

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which they
are measured as 12-month ECL:

* debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
* other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition.

12-month ECL is the portion of ECL that results from default events on a financial instrument that is possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is recognised are referred
to as ‘Stage 1 financial instruments’.

Life-time ECL is the ECL that results from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised but which are not creditimpaired are referred to as
‘Stage 2 financial instruments’.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Bank assess whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired
(referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

* significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

* a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

* the restructuring of a loan by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise; or

* it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or;
* the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be
creditimpaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly
and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a loan that is overdue more than 90 days per CIFRS
rebuttable assumption is considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.

Creditimpaired Loans and advances are graded as substandard, doubtful and loss in the Bank’s internal credit risk
grading system.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

A. Credit risk (continued)
(iii) Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(a) Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment (continued)
Credit risk grades

From 27 March 2020, the Bank has applied Circular No. B7-020-001 issued by the NBC on loan restructuring to
support customers affected by COVID-19 by:

* reducing the amount of loan principal or amount to be repaid at the maturity;

* lowering interest rate than original contractual terms;

¢ deferring the repayment of principal or interest or capitalised interest;

* extending the maturity date; adding and/modifying co-borrower and/or guarantor, when applicable;

* changing an instalment loan to an interest payment only where the principal is repaid at the maturity (bullet loan);

* releasing collaterals or accepting lower level of collateralisation; and

* easing of covenants or/and providing grace period for repayment up to 6 months from the effective signing date of
the new contract.

Accordingly, for customers who paid principle payment or interest, or both payments not past due more than 90 days
(performing loan) and are expected to be experiencing only temporary financial and repayment difficulties. NBC allows
loan restructuring to all sectors impacted by COVID-19 pandemic and floods based on the Bank’s own valuation.

The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on the prudential definition of NBC which applies the
number of days past due as the grading criteria. The grades are:

Normal

Special mention

Sub-standard

Doubtful

Loss

AR S

Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk
grade. The monitoring typically involves the use of following data:

Past repayment history;

Financial conditions of counterparty;

Business prospective and cash projection;

Ability and willingness to pay;

Economic environment; and

Quality of documentation.

i) Significant increase in credit risk
The Bank considers the significant increase in credit risk into two stages as below:
Significant increases in credit risk in Stage 2

The change in levels of credit risk over the expected life of a financial instrument is assessed by comparing credit
risk at each reporting date with the associated instrument’s credit risk at initial recognition. The Bank use 30
DPD as a backstop and applies the rebuttable assumption that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 DPD.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
(iii). Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(a) Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment (continued)
i). Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk in Stage 2 (continued)

Moreover, The Bank have also considered qualitative factors including:

« 30 DPD as backstop for long-term loans and 15 DPD for shortterm loans (counting from 30 DPD upward for
long-term and from 15 DPD for shortterm loans);

« Use of quantitative indicators (change in PD at reporting date from the origination date);

« Change in cumulative residual unbiased PD;

« Change in unbiased 12-month PD comparing origination unbiased 12-month PD expected at the reporting
date with the current 12-month PD at reporting use of qualitative indicators defined; or

« Restructured loans with special mentioned classification (loans which are restructured and classified as special
mention will be changed from Stage 1 to Stage 2).

Significant increases in credit risk in Stage 3

A financial instrument that has been credit-impaired since origination or purchase is automatically classified as a

Stage 3 financial instrument. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data related to

the following events:

« Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

« A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

« Itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

« The disappearance of an active market for the financial asset because of financial difficulties for example
debtor’s business status, debtor during litigation process, frequency of entering debt restructuring etc.;

o  Fraudulent debtors;

« Partially NPL sales or partially write off;

o Deceased; and

« Trouble debt restructuring (DTR) unsuccesstul.

The Bank also applies 90 DPD as a backstop in moving a facility from Stage 2 to Stage 3 and consider a facility as
creditimpaired. Moreover, loans which are restructured and classified as substandard, doubtful or loss will be changed
from Stage 2 to Stage 3.

ii) Definition of default

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

o the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions such
as realising security (if any is held);

o the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the Bank; or

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to the borrower’s
inability to pay its credit obligations.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

A. Credit risk (continued)
(iii) Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(a) Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment (continued)
iii). Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of an
instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL.

External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and
monetary authorities in the countries where the Bank operates, supranational organisations such as the National
Bank of Cambodia and selected private-sector and academic forecasters.

The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial
instruments in accordance with each country and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships
between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

iv). Modified financial assets

The Bank renegotiates Loans and advances in financial difficulties (referred to as restructure activities) to maximise
collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank's restructure policy, loan is granted on a
selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is evidence
that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is expected
to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing
of interest payments and amending the terms of loan covenants.

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s restructure policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether the
modification has improved or restored the Bank’s ability to collect interest and principal and the Bank’s previous
experience. As part of this process, the Bank evaluate the borrower’s payment performance against the modified
contractual terms and considers various behavioural indicators.

Generally, restructure is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an expectation of restructure
may constitute evidence that an exposure is creditimpaired. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good
payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer considered to be credit-impaired/in
default or the PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an
amount equal to Stage 1.

v). Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. It is measured as follows:

« Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Bank in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Bank expect to receive);

« Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
(iii) Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
(a) Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment (continued)
v). Measurement of ECL

The Bank calculate the ECL by taking the gross carrying amount of financial assets multiplying by the consolidated
probability of default (PD) ratio of each stage with risk adjustment factors.

Expected credit loss, ECL is the present value of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life, discounted at the EIR.

For each year throughout the financial instrument’s life, a forward- looking PD, LGD and EAD are estimated.
The estimates are multiplied with each other to estimate the losses for each of the years. Then the estimates are
discounted back to the reporting date using the EIR as the discount rate.

The Bank used the SME retail and mortgage loan as modelled portfolio to leverage on because they shared

several characteristics in common. They all are term loans with predetermined maturity date and stipulated
repayment schedule of both principal and interest.

(b). Loss allowance
This table summarises the loss allowance as of the end of the year by class of exposure/assets.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Impairment loss allowance:
Balance with other banks 1,272 5,237 1,424 5,802
Loans and advances 120,641 496,679 18,602 75,784
121,913 501916 20,026 81,586

Under the Bank’s monitoring procedures, a significant increase in credit risk is identified before the exposure has defaulted,
and at the latest when the exposure becomes 30 days past due. This is the case mainly for Loans and advances. The table
below provides an analysis of the gross carrying amount of Loans and advances by past due status.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Gross carrying Gross carrying Loss
amount Loss allowance amount allowance

uss$ uss$ uss$ us$
Loans of more than one year
0 - 29 days 137,140,963 32,923 130,644,783 8,201
30 - 89 days 3,364,252 5,365 453,251 136
90 - 179 days 598,133 21,632
180 - 359 days 104,207 3,413
More than 359 days

141,207,555 63,333 131,098,034 8,337
KHR’000 equivalents (Note 5 581,351,504 260,742 534,093,391 33,965
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
A. Credit risk (continued)

(iii) Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

(b) Loss allowance (continued)

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Gross carrying
Gross carrying amount Loss  allowance amount Loss allowance
uss$ uss$ uss$ uss

Loans of less than one year
0 - 14 days 23,851,570 51,980 16,694,334 9,882
15 - 30 days
31 - 60 days - - 312 383
61 - 90 days 336 336
More than 90 days 5,663 4,992

23,857,569 57,308 16,694,646 10,265
KHR’000 equivalents (Note 5 98,221,612 235,937 68,013,988 41,820
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
A. Credit risk (continued)
(iv) Concentration of credit risk

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by sectors as follows:

Cash, balances with other Loans and
banks and NBC - net advances - net Other assets Total
31 December 2022 uss us$ us$ us$

Personal lending - 17901,986 - 17901,986
Construction - 939,022 - 939,022
Real estates - 78,865,519 - 78,865,519
Retail trade - 14,351,680 - 14,351,680
Hotels and restaurants - 3,849,627 - 3,849,627
Wholesale trade - 3,782,424 - 3,782,424
Transport and storage - 204,844 - 204,844
Agriculture - 2,716,284 - 2,716,284
Rental and operational | easing activities - 671,312 - 671,312
Utilities - 4,779 - 4,779
Others 42,983,266 41,657,006 284,053 84,924,325
Total 42,983,266 164,944,483 284,053 208,211,802
In KHR'000 equivalents (Note 5) 176,962,106 679,076,438 1,169,446 857,207,990
31 December 2021

Personal lending . 19,236,333 . 19,236,333
Construction - 856,276 - 856,276
Real estates - 65,336,913 - 65,336,913
Retail trade - 13,912,136 - 13,912,136
Hotels and restaurants - 1,332,175 - 1,332,175
Wholesale trade - 2,481,844 - 2,481,844
Transport and storage - 342,158 - 342,158
Agriculture - 1,957,996 - 1,957,996
Rental and operational | easing activities - 877,698 - 877,698
Utilities - 19,308 - 19,308
Others 41,253,994 41,421,241 1,195,333 83,870,568
Total 41,253,994 147,774,078 1,195,333 190,223,405
In KHR'000 equivalents (Note 5) 168,068,772 602,031,594 4,869,787 774,970,152
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
A. Credit risk (continued)
(iv) Concentration of credit risk (continued)

Concentration risk by residency and relationship and large-exposures and restructuring status for Loans and advances:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

uss KHR’000 uss$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
By residency status:
Residents 164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

By relationship:

External customers 155,168,409 638,828,341 142,189,058 579,278,222

Loans to staffs 9,776,074 40,248,097 5,585,020 22,753,372
164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

By collateral security:

Secured 162,253,831 667,999,022 146,181,044 595,541,573

Unsecured 2,690,652 11,077,416 1,593,034 6,490,021
164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

By exposure:

Large exposures (*)

Non-lorge exposures 164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594
164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

By restructuring status:

Restructured loan (**) 17,858,542 73,523,616 23,934,149 97,507,723

Normal 147,085,941 605,552,822 123,839,929 504,523,871
164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

By maturity:

Within T month 2,093,811 8,620,220 658,783 2,683,882

> 1 to 3 months 7,976,550 32,839,456 2,238,270 9,118,712

> 3 to 12 months 16,018,272 65,947,226 16,611,532 67,675,381

> 1 to 5 years 5,414,692 22,292,287 5,984,054 24,379,036

Over 5 years 133,441,158 549,377,249 122,281,439 498,174,583
164,944,483 679,076,438 147,774,078 602,031,594

(*) A “large exposure” is defined under the NBC’s Prakas as the overall gross exposure of the aggregate balance
of loans and advances with one single beneficiary, which exceeds 10% of the Bank’s net worth. The exposure is
the higher of the outstanding loans or commitments and the authorised loans or commitments.

(**) A “restructured loan” is a loan that original contractual terms have been modified to provide for concessions

for the borrowers for reasons related to real temporary financial difficulties. For the regulatory provision on
restructured loan refer to Note 3TM.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
(v) Credit risk measurement

The Bank has established the Core Credit Risk Policy which is designed to govern the Bank’s risk undertaking
activities. Extension of credit is governed by credit programs which set out the plan for a particular product or
portfolio, including the target market, terms and conditions, documentation and procedures under which a credit
product will be offered and measured.

Risk ratings are reviewed and updated on an annual basis, and in event of (i) change of loan terms and conditions
including extension; (ii) repayment irregularities or delinquencies and (iii) adverse information relating to the
borrower or transaction.

(vi) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank operates and provides loans to individuals or enterprises within the Kingdom of Cambodia. The Bank
manages limits and controls concentration of credit risk whenever they are identified. Large exposure is defined
by the NBC as overall credit exposure to any individual beneficiary which exceeds 10% of the Bank’s net worth.

The Bank is required, under the conditions of Prakas No. B7-06-226 of the NBC, to maintain at all times a
maximum ratio of 20% between the Bank’s overall credit exposure to any individual beneficiary and the Bank’s
net worth. The aggregation of large credit exposure must not exceed 300% of the Bank’s net worth.

The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most tradition of these is the taking
of security in the form of collateral for Loans and advances, which is common practice. The Bank implements
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types
to secure for Loans and advances is mortgage over residential properties (land, buildings and other properties).

(vii) Impairment and provisioning policies

The Bank’s impairment methodology for assets carried at amortised costs comprises:
Specific impairment losses for individually significant or specifically identified exposures
Collective impairment of individually not significant exposures

Specific impairment losses for individually significant or specifically identified exposures

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from banks and Loans and advances), the Bank
first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant or are
already under specific work out by management.

It is the Bank’s policy to regularly monitor its loan portfolio. Impairment indicators include: internal rating of
the borrower indicating default or near-default, the borrower requesting emergency funding from the Bank; the
borrower having past due liabilities to public creditors or employees; a material decrease in the underlying
collateral value where the sale of the financed asset is required to repay the loan; a material decrease in the
borrower’s turnover or the loss of a major customer; a material decrease in estimated future cash flows; any
material facility at the debtor level falling beyond 90 past due; a covenant breach not waived by the Bank; the
debtor (or any legal entity within the debtor’s group) filing for bankruptcy application/protection and/or debtor’s
listed debt or equity suspended at the primary exchange because of rumours or facts about financial difficulties.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
A. Credit risk (continued)
(vii) Impairment and provisioning policies (continued)

Specific impairment losses for individually significant or specifically identified exposures (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in credit loss expense in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of interest and similar income.

Loans together with the associated allowances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced (but only up to the extent of the
carrying amount had the impairment not been recognised) by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write—off
is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the “credit loss expense”.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted by the financial asset’s original EIR. The calculation of
the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure, less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted by the financial asset’s original EIR. The calculation
of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure, less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.
Collective impairment model - Individually not significant exposures

Collective impairment model — Individually not significant exposures

These portfolios are reclassified into different segmentations with similar credit risk characteristics, using the source
of income as key criteria and using the simple average of Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD)
for the latest period since October 2013 (date of incorporation). Generally, the impairment trigger used within
these portfolios is when they reach a pre-defined delinquency level (e.g., the borrower falls 90 days past due with
its contractual payments (capital or interest)).

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions on which the historical loss
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect and are directionally consistent with changes in related observable
data from period to period (such as changes in unemployment rates, personal indebtedness, collateral values including
property prices for mortgages, commodity prices, payment status or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in
the group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
(viii) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The following table presents the Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk of on-balance sheet and off-balance
sheet financial instruments, without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements. For
on-balance sheet assets, the exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For contingent liabilities, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount that the Bank would have to pay if the obligations of the
instruments issued are called upon. For credit commitments, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount
of the undrawn credit facilities granted to customers.

Partially subject Unsecured and not

Fully subject to to collateral/ subject to collateral/

Maximum credit Maximum credit collateral/credit

exposure exposure credit credit enhancement
enhancement
enhancement
KHR’000
US$ (Note 5) % % %
31 December 2022
On balance sheet items
Cash, balances with other
banks and NBC 42,983,266 176,962,106 0% 0% 100%
Loans and advances 164,944,483 679,076,438 98.37% 0% 1.63%
Other assets 284,053 1,169,446 0% 0% 100%
208,211,802 857,207,990
Off-Balance sheet items
Commitments 413,122 1,700,822 100% 0% 0%

Fully subject to  Partially subject to Unsecured and not
collateral/credit  collateral/ credit subject to collateral/
enhancement enhancement  credit enhancement

Maximum credit Maximum credit
exposure exposure

KHR’000

us$ (Note 5)

31 December 2021

On balance sheet items

Cash, balances with other

banks and NBC 41,253,994 168,068,771 0% 0% 100%
Loans and advances 147,774,078 602,031,594 98.92% 0% 1.08%
Other assets 1,195,333 4,869,787 0% 0% 100%

190,223,405 774,970,152

Off-Balance sheet items

Commitments 1,723,565 7,021,804 100% 0% 0%
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
A. Credit risk (continued)
(ix). Repossessed collateral

During the year, the Bank did not obtain assets by taking possession of collateral held as security.
Repossessed properties have to be sold within one year as required by the NBC. Repossessed property is classified in
the statement of financial position as foreclosed properties, if any.

B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refer to risk which the institution cannot meet the obligation or cannot settle debt obligation or settle position
in the specific economic and financial situation and market situation. Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in the timing
and amounts of cash flows, which is inherent to the Bank’s operations and investments.

(i). Liquidity risk management

The Bank established a comprehensive policy and control framework for managing liquidity risk. The Bank’s
Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is responsible for managing the Bank’s liquidity risk via a
combination of policy formation, review and governance, analysis, stress testing, limit setting and monitoring. In
order to effectively manage liquidity risk the Bank:

+  maintains a portfolio of highly liquid assets, diversified by currency and maturity;

« ensures that there is diversity in its funding base consisting of customer deposits (both retail and corporate) and wholesale
market deposits and maintaining contingency facilities;

«  monitors the behavioural characteristics of financial assets and liabilities;

«  monitors liquidity reports analysing the expected maturity profile of assets and liabilities;

« establishes early warning indicators of potential liquidity stress events and ensures that there are assets available fo be used
as collateral if needed;

«  performs regular stress tests of the Bank's liquidity position against various exposures and global, country-specific and Bank-
specific events; and

+  maintains a contingency funding plan designed to provide a framework where a liquidity stress could be effectively managed.

The Bank Treasury function executes the Bank’s liquidity and funding strategy in co-operation with other business
units of the Bank. The Bank’s liquidity and funding strategy is determined in accordance with relevant local
regulatory requirements. The Bank's foreign operations determine a local liquidity strategy which needs to be in
line with both local regulatory framework and the Bank’s central policy.

There are daily controls in place to define and monitor compliance with the Bank’s liquidity risk appetite. The
principal metric used is the result of the Bank'’s liquidity stress testing, supplemented by the results of key regulatory
ratios including the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (which measures the ratio of high quality liquid assets to outflows in an
extreme 30 days stress scenario) and the Net Stable Funding Ratio (which seeks to promote a sustainable maturity
structure of funding balances).

Regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenarios covering both normal and more severe market
conditions. The scenarios are developed taking info account both Bank-specific events (e.g. a rating downgrade) and
market-related events (e.g. prolonged market illiquidity, reduced fungibility of currencies, natural disasters or other
catastrophes). Moreover, stress scenarios may be based on past events (historical scenario) observed within the own
institution, or more commonly, on crisis situations witnessed by other institutions of similar size, business model and
regional footprint. Often, the Bank also combines crisis elements from various historical situations to develop a hypothetical
but plausible crisis scenario that might be more relevant to their current business model and exposure profile.

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.



Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
B. Liquidity risk (continued)
(ii). Maturity analysis for financial liabilities and financial assets

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to liquidity risk. The table indicates the periods in which the financial
instruments reprice or mature, whichever is earlier.

Gross nominal
Carrying  Inflow/  Upto1 >1-3  >3-12 >1-5  Over5 No
amount outflow) month months months years years maturity

31 December 2022

Financial assets

Cash on hand 3,180,319 3,180,319 - - - : - 3,180,319
Balances with the NBC 24,256,771 24,256,771 24,155,713 - 101,058
Balances with other banks 65,393 66,665 66,665

Loans and advances 164,944,483 283,022,455 2,151,788 8,037,666 50,092,774 6,423,167 216,317,060

Other assets 284,053 284,053 - - - - - 284,053

Total financial assets 192,731,019 310,810,263 26,374,166 8,037,666 50,193,832 6,423,167 216,317,060 3,464,372

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers  (136,516,568) (144,677,432)  (4773912)  (14,849,303) (99,019,885)  (9,685,410)  (11,595,078) (4,753,844)

Subordinated debt (1,202,262)  (1,319997) - - (459,999) (859,998)
Lease liabilities (1,485,154)  (1,658,363) (42,233) (84,446) (353,340)  (1,108,344) (70,000)
Other liabilities (23,439) (23,439) - - - - - (23,439)

Total financial liabilities (139,227423) (147,679,231)  (4,816,145)  (14933,749) (99,833,224)  (11,653,752)  (11,665,078) (4,777,283)

Total maturity gap 53,503,506 163,131,032 21,558,021  (6896,083) (49,639,392) (5,230,585 204651982 (1,312911)
In KHR'000 equivalents
(Note 5) 220,274,304 671,610,458 88754372 (28,391,174) (204,365,378) (21,534,318) 842,552,210 (5,405,255)
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
B. Liquidity risk (continued)
(ii). Maturity analysis for financial liabilities and financial assets

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to liquidity risk. The table indicates the periods in which the financial
instruments reprice or mature, whichever is earlier.

Gross
nominal
Carrying Inflow/ Upto1 >1-3 >3-12 >1-5 Over 5 No
amount  outflow) month months months years years maturity

31 December 2021

Financial assets

Cash on hand 3,040,031 3,040,031 - - - : - 3,040,031
Balances with the NBC 24,067,685 24,067,685 23,967,685 - 100,000

Balances with other banks 67,732 69,156 69,156

Loans and advances 147,774,078 227,110,215 661,806 2,251,713 17,138,523 7,131,721 199,926,453

Other assets 1,195,333 1,195,333 - - - : - 1,195,333

Total financial assets 176,144,859 255,482,420 24,698,647 2,251,713 17,238,523 7,131,721 199,926,453 4,235,364

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers  (115,889,619) (122,051,451)  (2,188,084) (12,253,501) (83,392,872)  (6,663,242)  (8,397,050) (9,156,702)

Subordinated debt (1,603,156) (1,799,998 - - (480,000)  (1,319,998)
Lease liabilities (1,605981)  (1,805,029) (42,223) (84,446) (380,007)  (1,108,353) (190,000)
Other liabilities (132,771) (132,771) . . . - - (132771)

Total financial liabilities (119,231,527) (125789,249) (2,230,307)  (12,337947) (84,252,879)  (9,091,593)  (8,587,050) (9,289,473)

Totall maturity gap 56913,332 129,693,171 22,468,340  (10,086,234)  (67,014,356) (1,959,872) 191,339,402 (5,054,109)
In KHR'000 equivalents
(Note 5) 231,864915 528,369,979 91,536,017  (41,091,317) (273,016,485) (7984,520) 779,516,724 (20,590,440)

(iii). Liquidity reserves
The following table sefs out the components of the Bank'’s liquidity reserves.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ US$
(Note 5)
Cash on hand 3,180,319 3,040,031
Balances with the NBC 24,256,771 24,067,685
Balances with other banks 65,393 67,732
Total liquidity reserves 27,502,483 27,175,448
In KHR’0O0O0 equivalents (Note 5) 113,227,722 110,712,775
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk

‘Market risk’ is the risk that changes in market prices — e.g. interest rates and foreign exchange rates— will affect the Bank's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of the Bank’s market risk management is fo manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters to ensure the Bank’s solvency while optimising the return on risk.

(i). Market risk management

Overall authority for market risk is vested in Risk Management Committee (RMC) at Board level and Assets and Liabilities
Management Committee (ALCO) at management level. RMC sets up limits for each type of risk in aggregate and for
portfolios (all portfolios are non-rading). The Risk and Compliance Department is responsible for the development of
detailed risk management policies (subject to review by RMC and approval by Board of Directors). Treasury function
implement and manage the day-to-day market risk in the daily operation.

a) Interest rate risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash
flows or fair values of financial instruments or economic value of equity of the Bank because of a change in market
interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-
approved limits for repricing bands. ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits and is assisted by
Treasury Department in its day- to-day monitoring activities. These day-to-day activities include monitoring changes
in the Bank’s interest rate exposures, which include the impact of the Bank’s outstanding or forecast debt obligations.

RMC and ALCO is responsible for setting the overall hedging strategy of the Bank. Treasury is responsible for
implementing that strategy by putting in place the individual hedge arrangements.

The following is a summary of the Bank’s interest rate gap position. The interest rate repricing gap table analyses the
full-term structure of interest rate mismatches within the Bank’s statement of financial position at its carrying amount
based on either (i) the next repricing date or (ii) the maturity date if floating rate.

Upto1 >1-3 >3-12 Over 5 Non-interest
month months months > 1-5years years bearing Total
31 December 2022 us$ uss$ Uus$ us$ URRS us$ us$
Financial assets
Cash on hand - - - - - 3,180,319 3,180,319
Balances with the NBC - - 101,058 - 7,500,000 32,136,496 39,737,554
Balances with other banks 65,393 - - - : - 65,393
Loans and advances 2,092,167 7977,239 16,019,232 5,414,692 133,441,153 - 164,944,483
Other assets - - - - - 284,053 284,053
Total financial assets 2,157,560 7977239 16,120,290 5,414,692 140,941,153 35,600,868 208,211,802
Financial liabilities
Deposiis from customers 4,766,299 14,744,078 95,589,532 8,867,254 7,795,560 4,753,845 136,516,568
Subordinated debt - - 402,262 800,000 - - 1,202,262
Lease liabilities 35,593 71,641 303,630 1,005,525 68,765 - 1,485,154
Other liabilities - - - - - 23,439 23,439
Total financial liabilities 4,801,892 14,815,719 96,295,424 10,672,779 7,864,325 4,777,284 139,227,423
Total interest rate gap (2,644,332)  (6,838,480) (80,175,134)  (5,258,087) 133,076,828 30,823,584 68,984,379

In KHR'000 equivalents (Note 5)  (10,886,715)  (28,154,022) (330,081,027)  (21,647,544) 547,877,302 126,900,696 284,008,690
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
C. Market risk(continued)

(i). Market risk management (continued)

a) Interest rate risk (continued)

Uptol >1-3 >3-12 Over 5 Non-interest
month months months > 1-5years  years bearing Total

31 December 2021

Financial assets

Cash on hand - - - - - 3,040,031 3,040,031
Balances with the NBC . . 100,000 . 7500,083 30,546,148 38,146,231
Balances with other banks 6,797 - - - - 60,935 67,732
Loans and advances 658,783 902,497  17947,305 5984,054 122,281,439 - 147774,078
Other assets - - - - - 1,195,333 1,195,333
Total financial assets 665,580 902,497 18,047,305 5984054 129,781,522 34,842,447 190,223,405

Financial liabilities

Deposiis from customers 2,150,659 14,947,223 78,664,039 5,811,819 5,320,830 8,995,049 115,889,619
Subordinated debt - - 400,000 1,203,156 - - 1,603,156
Lease liabilities 35,051 70,553 325,399 993,225 181,753 - 1,605,981
Other liabilities - - - - - 132,771 132,771
Total financial liabilities 2,185,710 15017776 79,389,438 8,008,200 5,502,583 9127820 119,231,527

Total interest rate repricing gap  (1,520,130) (14,115,279)  (61,342,133) (2,024,146) 124,278,939 25,714,627 70,991,878

In KHR'000 equivalents (Note 5)  (6,193,010)  (57,505,647) (249,907,849 (8,246,372) 506,312,397 104,761,391 289,220,910
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk(continued)

(i). Market risk management (continued)

b) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank operates in the Kingdom of Cambodia and transacts in many currencies, and is exposed to various currency
risks, primarily with respect to Khmer Riel, United Stated Dollar and Hong Kong Dollar.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the Bank’s functional currency.

Concentration of currency risk
The amounts of financial assets and liabilities, by currency denomination, are as follows:

Denomination
US$ equivalents

31 December 2022 (G US$ Total

Financial assets

Cash on hand 597,556 2,582,763 3,180,319
Balances with the NBC 1,530,350 38,207,204 39,737,554
Balances with other banks 1,545 63,847 65,393
Loans and advances 18,927,718 146,016,766 164,944,483
Other assets 1,181 282,872 284,053
21,058,350 187,153,452 208,211,802

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 2,924,401 133,592,167 136,516,568
Subordinated debt 1,202,262 1,202,262
Lease liabilities 1,485,154 1,485,154
Other liabilities 8,210 15,229 23,439
2,932,611 136,294,812 139,227,423
Net asset position 18,125,739 50,858,640 68,984,379
(KHR’000 - Note 5) 74,623,668 209,385,022 284,008,690
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
C. Market risk(continued)

(i). Market risk management (continued)

b) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Bank operates in the Kingdom of Cambodia and transacts in many currencies, and is exposed to various currency
risks, primarily with respect to Khmer Riel, United Stated Dollar and Hong Kong Dollar.

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.

Denomination
US$ equivalents
31 December 2022 KHR us$ Total

Financial assets
Cash on hand 485,980 2,554,051 3,040,031
Balances with the NBC 806,571 37,339,660 38,146,231
Balances with other banks 1,258 66,474 67,732
Loans and advances 14,952,388 132,821,690 147,774,078
Other assets 1,208 1,194,125 1,195,333

16,247,405 173,976,000 190,223,405
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 2,512,135 113,377,484 115,889,619
Subordinated debt 1,603,156 1,603,156
Lease liabilities 1,605,981 1,605,981
Other liabilities 132,771 132,771

2,512,135 116,719,392 119,231,527
Net asset position 13,735,270 57,256,608 70,991,878
(KHR’000 - Note 5) 55,957,490 233,263,420 289,220,910
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Market risk(continued)

(i). Market risk management (continued)

b) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The amounts of financial assets and liabilities, by currency denomination, are as follows (continued): Sensitivity

analysis Considering that other risk variables remain constant, the foreign currency revaluation sensitivity for the
Bank as at reporting date is summarised as follows:

2022 2021
- 1% + 1% -1% +1%
Depreciation Appreciation  Depreciation ~ Appreciation
uss uss$ Us$ us$
Khmer Riel 183,088 (179,463) (138,740) 135,993
In (KHR'000 — Note 5) 753,773 (738,849) (565,227) 554,035

Operational risk management

‘Operational risk’ is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
Bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market
and liquidity risks — e.g. those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards
of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Bank’s operations.

The Bank's objective is fo manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to
the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and innovation. In all cases, Bank’s policy requires compliance
with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Risk and Compliance Department is responsible for the development and implementation of controls to address
operational risk. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall Bank standards for the management
of operational risk in the following areas:

« requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions;

« requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

« compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

« documentation of controls and procedures;

« requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified;

« requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action;

« development of contingency plans;

+ training and professional development;

« information technology and cyber risks; and

« risk mitigation, including insurance where this is cost-effective.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
E. Capital risk

Capital risk is the risk that the Bank has insufficient capital resources to meet the minimum regulatory requirements
to support its credit rating and to support its growth and strategic options.

The Bank’s strategy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain market confidence and to sustain further
development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholder’ return is also recognised and the
Bank recognised the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater
gearing and advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

The Bank’s lead regulator, the NBC, sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank as a whole.

Capital risk management

Capital risk is measured and monitored using limits set calculated in accordance with NBC's requirements.

On 22 February 2018, the NBC issued a Prakas on Capital Buffer in Banking and Financial Institutions. According
to Article 22 of this Prakas, the institution shall comply with the provisions related to the capital conservation buffer
at least 50% of the conservation buffer by 1 January 2019 and fully comply by 1 January 2020.

On 7 March 2018, the NBC issued a circular on the implementation of Prakas on Capital Buffer in Banking and Financial
Institutions, which determines the countercyclical capital buffer at a level of 0% until a new announcement is released.

On 25 June 2020, the NBC further issued an additional circular on the implementation of Prakas on Capital Buffer
in Banking and Financial Institutions to introduce the additional implementation information of the Prakas. There are
no updates to revoke the determination of the countercyclical capital buffer at level of 0% up to date of this report.

(i) Regulatory capital
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the “equity” on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

* To comply with the capital requirements set by the NBC;

* To safeguard the Bank'’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders; and

* To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the business.

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain market confidence and to sustain further
development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Bank
recognised the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
E. Capital risk
(i) Regulatory capital (continued)

The below table summarises the composition of the regulatory capital:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Tier 1 capital
Share Copif0| 75,000,000 300,000,000 75,000,000 300,000,000
Retained earnings 2,540,611 10,301,501 2,135,391 8,656,675
Audited Net Profit (last financial year) 1,486,174 6,073,994 1,006,691 4,095,220
Less: Intangible assets (847,174) (3,487,815) (979,224) (3,989,359)
Less: Loans to related parties (3,990,440) (16,428,641) (185,425) (755,421)
74,189,171 296,459,039 76,977,433 308,007,115
Tier 2 complementary capital
General provision 1,627,446 6,700,196 1,496,876 6,098,273
Subordinated debts approved by 1,200,000 4,940,400 1,600,000 6,518,400
Less: Equity participation in banking or financial
institutions
2,827,446 11,640,596 3,096,876 12,616,673
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

E. Capital risk (continued)
(i) Capital allocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, driven by optimisation of
the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated to each operation or activity is based
primarily upon the regulatory capital.

30. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financialinstrumentscomprisefinancialassets, financialliabilitiesand off-balance sheetinstruments. Fairvalueisthe price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
atthe measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access
at that date. The information presented herein represents the estimates of fair values as at the financial position date.

Quoted and observable market prices, where available, are used as the measure of fair values of the financial
instruments. Where such quoted and observable market prices are not available, fair values are estimated based
on a range of methodologies and assumptions regarding risk characteristics of various financial instruments,
discount rates, estimates of future cash flows and other factors.

Fair value information for non-financial assets and liabilities are excluded as they do not fall within the scope of
CIFRS 7: Financial Instruments Disclosures which requires the fair value information to be disclosed. This include
property and equipment.

The fair value of the Bank’s financial instruments such as cash, balance with the NBC, balance with other banks,
other assets, and other liabilities are not materially sensitive to shifts in market profit rate because of the limited
term to maturity of these instruments. As such, the carrying value of these financial assets and liabilities at financial
position date approximate their fair values.

l). Balances with other banks
Balance with other banks include non-interest bearing current accounts and savings deposits. The fair value of placements
with other financial institutions approximates the carrying amount.

(ii) Loans and advances
The fair value is estimated by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the prevailing market rates of financing
with similar credit risks and maturities.

(iif)  Deposits from banks, other financial institutions and customers
The fair values of deposits payable on demand (current and savings accounts), or deposits with remaining maturity
of less than one year are estimated to approximate their carrying amounts. The fair values of deposits with
remaining maturity of more than one year are estimated based on discounted cash flows using prevailing market
rates for similar deposits from banks and customers.
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FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
iv)Subordinated debt

The fair value of subordinated debt is estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using the applicable
prevailing market inferest rates for borrowings with similar risk profiles. However, only the contractual interest rates
which are confirmed and provided by all lenders are available at the reporting date instead of the applicable prevailing
market interest rates. The Bank believed that the contractual interest rates were not significantly different to the prevailing
market interest rates on the ground that there was no change to inferest rates following the lenders’ consideration on
the Bank's credit risk profile as at reporting date. On this basis, the fair value of subordinated debt approximates their
carrying values at the reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy

CIFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are
observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources and unobservable
inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

+ level 1 - Quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities. This level includes listed
equity securities and debt instruments.

+ Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

+ Level 3 - Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level
includes equity instruments and debt instruments with significant unobservable components.

The Bank’s financial assets and liability are not measured at fair value. As verifiable market prices are not available,
market prices are not available for a significant proportion of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities, the fair values,
therefore, have been based on management assumptions according to the profile of the asset and liability base. In the
opinion of the management, the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities included in the balance sheet are
a reasonable estimation of their fair values.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements, unless otherwise stated (Note 31U).

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are franslated into the functional currency of at the spot exchange rates at the date of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the spot
exchange rate at the reporting date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between the
amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest and payments during
the year, and the amortised cost in the foreign currency translated at the spot exchange rate at the end of the period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair value is determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rate
at the date of the transaction.
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31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities
i). Recognition and initial measurement

The Bank initially recognises Loans and advances, deposits with other banks, debt securities issued and subordinated
debt on the date on which they are originated. All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and
sales of financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Bank becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. The fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is
generally its transaction price.

ii). Classification

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

¢ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and
* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCl as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

* the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular,
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or

realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank’s management;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
ii). Classification (contnued)
Financial assets (continued)
Business model assessment (continued)

* the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

* the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future
sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment
of how the Bank’s stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest- SPPI

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Bank considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

In making the assessment, the Bank considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

* leverage features;

* prepayment and extension terms;

* terms that limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and

¢ features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

Non-recourse loans

In some cases, loans made by the Bank that are secured by collateral of the borrower limit the Bank’s claim to cash flows
of the underlying collateral (non-recourse loans). The Bank applies judgment in assessing whether the non-recourse loans
meet the SPPI criterion. The Bank typically considers the following information when making this judgement:
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31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest- SPPI (continued)
Non-recourse loans (continued)

* whether the contractual arrangement specifically defines the amounts and dates of the cash payments of the loan;

* the fair value of the collateral relative to the amount of the secured financial asset;

* the ability and willingness of the borrower to make contractual payments, notwithstanding a decline in the value of collateral;
* whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive operating entity or is a special-purpose entity;

¢ the Bank’s risk of loss on the asset relative to a full-recourse loan;

* the extent to which the collateral represents all or a substantial portion of the borrower’s assets; and

¢ whether the Bank will benefit from any upside from the underlying assets.

Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Bank changes
its business model for managing financial assets.

iii). Derecognition

Financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying
amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCl is recognised in profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset
are substantially different.

iv). Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Bank evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are
deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised (see (iii)) and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs.

Any fees received as part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

¢ fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent reimbursement of
eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and

* other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
iv). Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

It cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the modification is usually
to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a new asset with substantially different
terms. If the Bank plans to modify a financial asset in a way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first
considers whether a portion of the asset should be written off before the modification takes place (see below for write-off
policy). This approach impacts the result of the quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not
usually met in such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in derecognition of the
financial asset, then the Bank first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset using the original effective
interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For
floating-rate financial assets, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted
to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received as part of the
modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term
of the modified financial asset.

If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented
together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income calculated using the effective interest
rate method.

Financial liabilities

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and consideration paid is recognised in
profit and loss. Consideration paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities,
including the new modified financial liability.

It the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost of the liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit and loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the
modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees
incurred are recognised as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining term
of the modified financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument.

Interest rate benchmark reform

If the basis of determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability measured at amortised cost
changes as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, then the Bank updates the effective interest rate of the financial
asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by the reform. A change in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if the following conditions are met:
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31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
iv). Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

* the change is necessary as a direct consequence of the reform; and
* the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis - i.e. the
basis immediately before the change.

WIf changes are made to a financial asset or financial liability in addition to changes to the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark reform, then the Bank first updates the effective interest rate
of the financial asset of financial liability to reflect the change that is required by interest rate benchmark reform. After
that, the Bank applies the policies on accounting for modifications set out above to the additional charges.

The main risks to which the Company is exposed as a result of IBOR reform are operational. For example, the renegotiation
of borrowing contracts through bilateral negotiation with lenders, updating of contractual terms, updating of systems
that use IBOR curves and revision of operational controls related to the reform. Financial risk is predominantly limited to
interest rate risk.

(v). Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(vi). Fair valve measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Bank has access at that date.

The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e.
the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value on initial recognition
differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an
identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be
insignificant in relation fo the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to
defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference
is recognised in profit and loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation
is wholly supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(vi). Fair valve measurement (continued)

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are
managed by the Bank on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are measured on the basis
of a price that would be received to sell a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for the
particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments — e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments that reflect
the measurement on the basis of the net exposure — are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis
of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount
payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount could be required to be paid.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during
which the change has occurred.

(vii). Impairment

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position for financial assets measured at
amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

* financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets; and
* loan commitments: generally, as a provision.
For more details of impairment, refer to Note 29A(iii) and 29A(vii).

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new
one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset should
be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows.

* If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising
from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

* |f the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value of the new
asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is
included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of
derecognition to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial
assets carried at FVOCI are creditimpaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
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31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(vii). Impairment (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes the following observable data:

* significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

* a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

* the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise;
* it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

* the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-
impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and
there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-
impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.

Write-off

Loans and advances are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Bank determines that the borrower
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ in the statement
of profit and loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

D. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist cash on hand, unrestricted balances held with the NBC and other banks; and highly
liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

E. Loans and advances
Loans and advances captions in the statement of financial position represent loans measured at amortised cost; they are
initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently at their amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

F. Other assets
Other assets are carried at amortised cost less impairment, if any.

@ Chief (Cambodia) Commercial Bank Plc.



Annual Report 2022

31.

G.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Where an item of property and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, the components
are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Bank. Ongoing repairs and maintenance
are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated using the cost of items of property and equipment less their estimated residual values

using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

The depreciation rate based on estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment are as follows:

Rate per annum

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvement 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Equipment 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use.
Fully depreciated items of property and equipment are retained in the statement of financial position until disposed of or written off.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets consist of software and licenses and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure on software and licenses is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Software and licenses are amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date on which
it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software and licenses for the current and comparative periods is 5 years.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

l. Leases

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Bank assesses whether:

+ the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be
physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has
a substantive substitution right throughout the period of use, then the asset is not identified;

« the Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

« the Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Bank has this right when it has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In cases where all the
decisions about how and for what purpose the asset is used are predetermined, the Bank has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either:

the Bank has the right to operate the asset; or
the Bank designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose It will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease and non-lease component, the Bank allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component and aggregate of non-lease components on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a lessee, the Bank has elected
not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

Leases in which the Bank is a lessee
An arrangement conveyed the right to use the asset if one of the following was met:

« the purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an
insignificant amount of the output;

« the purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or controlling more
than an insignificant amount of the output; or

« facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an insignificant
amount of the output, and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to the current market
price per unit of output.

The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use

asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The estimated useful lives for the current period of the head office and branches buildings are from 5 - 10 years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Leases in which the Bank is a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, to the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

* fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

* variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

* amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

* the exercise price under a purchase option that the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Bank is reasonably certain o exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a
lease unless the Bank is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is
a change in the lease term, a change in the assessment of the option to purchase the underlying asset, a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shortterm leases of machinery that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, including IT equipment. The Bank recognises
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets (other than deferred tax assets) are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount
of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assefs that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated

first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.
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31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J. Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications sssthat the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

K. Deposits from customers
Deposits from customers are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method.

L. Provisions
Provisions are recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If
the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

M. Share capital
Share capital is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new share are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

N. Regulatory reserves
Regulatory reserves are set up for the variance of provision between loan impairment in accordance with CIFRS and
regulatory provision in accordance with National Bank of Cambodia’s Prakas No. B7-017-344 dated 1 December
2017 and Circular No. B7-018-001 Sor Ror Chor Nor dated 16 February 2018 on credit risk classification
and provision on impairment for bank and financial institutions. In accordance with Article 73, the entity is shall
compare the provision calculated in accordance with Article 49 to 71 and the provision calculated in accordance
with Article 72, and the record:

(i) In case that the regulatory provision calculated in accordance with Article 72 is lower than provision calculated in
accordance with Article 49 to 71, the entity records the provision calculated in accordance with CIFRS; and

(i) In case that the regulatory provision calculated in accordance with Article 72 is higher than provision calculated
in accordance with Article 49 to 71, the entity records the provision calculated in accordance with CIFRS and transfer
the difference from retained earnings or accumulated loss account into regulatory reserve in shareholders’ equity of the
statement of financial position.

The regulatory reserve is not an item to be included in the calculated of the Bank’s net worth.

On 16 February 2018, NBC issued Circular No. B7-018-001 clarifying on Implementation of Prakas on Credit Risk
Grading and Impairment Provisioning. According to the Circular, the Bank is required to calculate the allowance for
impaired facilities in accordance with regulatory provision of which facilities are classified into five classes with provision
rates as follows:
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Regulatory reserves (continued)

Classifications Number of days past due Provision

General allowance
Short-term facilities (one year or less):

Normal 0-14 days 1%

Long-term facilities (more than one year):

Normal 0-29 days 1%
Classifications Number of days past due Provision

Specific allowance

Short-term facilities (one year or less):

Special mention 15-30 days 3%
Sub-standard 31-60 days 20%
Doubtful 61-90 days 50%
Loss 91 days & above 100%
Long-term facilities (more than one year):

Special mention 30-89 days 3%
Sub-standard 90-179 days 20%
Doubtful 180-359 days 50%
Loss 360 days & above 100%

For facility with repayment as quarterly, semi-annually or longer, such facility shall be classified as substandard if
their repayments are past due from five working days.

Regulatory provision on restructure loan

On 28 December 2021, the NBC issued a new Circular, No. B7-021-2314 CL on Classification and Provisioning
Requirement on Restructure Loans, which aims at phasing out the forbearance period for the existing restructured loans
and phasing the classification and provisioning arrangements complying with the current regulation, Prakas No.B7-017-
344 dated 01 December 2017 on Credit Risk Grading and Impairment Provisioning. In this regard, all restructured loans
by 31 December 2021 shall be classified and provisioned based on the requirements under this circular. For loans that
were still in the assessment period, they shall be kept at the same classification as before the restructured terms of contract.

Interest
Effective interest rate (EIR)
Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The “effective interest
rate or EIR” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to:

* the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
* the amortised cost of the financial liability.
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31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

O. Interest (continued)
Effective interest rate (EIR) (continued)

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The “effective interest
rate or EIR” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to:

* the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
* the amortised cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the EIR for financial instruments, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument, but not the expected credit losses (ECL).

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
EIR, and transactions costs. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount

The “amortised cost” of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for
financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.

The “gross carrying amount of a financial asset” is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any
expected credit loss allowance.

Calculation of interest income and expense

The EIR of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of a financial asset or a financial
liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the EIR is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset before
adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance or to the amortised cost of the liability. The EIR is revised as a result
of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments to reflect movements in market rates of inferest.

For financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the creditimpaired financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

For financial assets that were creditimpaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the
credit-adjusted EIR to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does not revert to a gross
basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

Presentation
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in profit or loss includes interest on financial

assets measured at amortised cost.

Interest expense calculated using effective interest method presented in profit or loss includes interest on financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost.
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Fee and commission

Fee and commission income and expense include fees other than those that are an integral to the EIR on a financial
asset or financial liability.

Fee and commission income, including referral fees, remittance fees, service charges and fees on deposit accounts,
other fees and commissions on loans, and other fee income are recognised as the related services are performed.

Fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, and are accounted as the services received.

Employee benefits
Shortterm employee benefits
Shortterm employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid if the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Income tax
Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

The Bank has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax treatments, do
not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore has accounted for them under CIAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets and has recognised the related expenses in “other expenses”.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences, to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Bank

expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
S. Contingent liabilities

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

T. Contingent assets
Where it is not possible that there is an inflow of economic benefits, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the asset is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent asset, unless the
probability of inflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent assets unless the
probability of inflow of economic benefits is remote.

u. New standards, amendments and other interpretation issued but not yet effective
The following amendments and interpretations to standards that are effective for annual periods beginning from 1
January 2022 do not have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements:

New currently effective requirements
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to CIFRS 16),
Annual Improvements to CIFRS Standards 2018-2020,
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments to CIAS 16; and
Reference to Conceptual Framework — Amendments to CIFRS 3.

In addition, a number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Bank has not early adopted any of the new or
amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

Forthcoming requirements

(i) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments fo CIAS 12)

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption to exclude transactions that give rise to equal
and offsetting temporary differences - e.g. leases. The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023. For leases, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognised from
the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment
to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. For all other transactions, the amendments apply to
transactions that occur after the beginning of the earliest period presented.

The Bank has chosen to early adopt “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to CIAS 12)”. Under the amendments, the Bank has recognised a separate deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability of US$297,031 and US$274,575, respectively. See Note 14(b) for the detail. There will be no
impact on retained earnings on adoption of the amendments.

(i) Other standards

The following new and amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements.
Classification of liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to CIAS1);
Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to CIAS 1 and CIFRS Practice Statement 2; and
Definition of Accounting Estimate — Amendments to CIAS 8.
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32.

A.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operations

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments and incurs certain contingencies with legal
recourse tfo its customers. No material losses are anticipated from these transactions as management believe the
below instruments on which credit risk has not increase significantly, which consist of:

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR’000 Us$ KHR'000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Unused overdraft 283,122 1,165,612 1,508,165 6,144,265
Performance bond 130,000 535,210 215,400 877,540
413,122 1,700,822 1,723,565 7,021,805
Capital commitments
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
us$ KHR’000 us$ KHR’000
(Note 5) (Note 5)
Software 649,268 2,673,036

Tax contingencies
Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to impose severe
fines, penalties and interest charges. The application of tax laws and regulations to many types of transactions are
susceptible to varying interpretations.

These facts may create tax risks in Cambodia substantially more significant than in other countries. Management
believes that it has adequately provided or tax liabilities based on its interpretation of tax legislation. However, the
relevant authorities may have different interpretations and the effects could be significant.

Comprehensive tax reassessment for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019

On 19 May 2020, the Bank received a tax reassessment notification for comprehensive tax audit for the period from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. As of the date of these financial statements, the comprehensive tax audit is
still on going and has not finalised yet.
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